
 

 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
APRIL 14, 2021, 4:00 PM 

LOCATION: TELECONFERENCE - SEE BELOW  
 
 

IMPORANT NOTICE REGARDING COVID-19 AND TELECONFERENCED MEETINGS:  
Based on the mandates by the Governor in Executive Order 33-20 to shelter in place and the guidance from the CDC, to 
minimize the spread of the coronavirus, please note the following changes to the District's ordinary meeting procedures: 

- The District offices are not open to the public at this time.  
- The meeting will be conducted via teleconference using Zoom in accordance with the Governor’s EO N-29-20 
- All members of the public seeking to observe and/or to address the local legislative body may participate in the 
 meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically in the manner described below.  

 
HOW TO OBSERVE THE MEETING:  

Telephone: Listen to the meeting live by calling Zoom at 1-669-900-9128 enter the Meeting ID# 641 417 3404 followed by 
the pound (#) key. More phone numbers can be found on Zoom's website at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6414173404 
 
Computer: Watch the live streaming of the meeting from a computer by navigating to the Zoom link 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6414173404 using a computer with internet access that meets Zoom's system requirements  
(see https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux)  
 
Mobile: Log in through the Zoom mobile app on a smartphone and enter Meeting ID# 641 417 3404. 

 
HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

 
Written / Read Aloud: Please email your comments to matthewcball@att.net, write "Public Comment" in the subject line. In 
the body of the email, include the agenda item number and title, as well as your comments. If you would like your comment 
to be read aloud at the meeting (not to exceed three minutes at staff's cadence), prominently write "Read Aloud at Meeting" 
at the top of the email. All comments received before 3:00 PM the day of the meeting will be included in the minutes and 
provided to the Trustees at the meeting. Comments received after this time will be treated as telephonic/electronic 
comments.  
 
Telephonic / Electronic Comments: During the meeting, the Board President or designee will announce the opportunity to 
make public comments and identify the cut off time for submission. A short recess (generally less than 3 minutes) will take 
place during the time public comment is open to allow the comments to be collected. Please email your comments to 
matthewcball@att.net, write "Public Comment" in the subject line. In the body of the email, include the agenda item number 
and title, as well as your comments. Once the public comment period is closed, all comments timely received will be read 
aloud. Comments received after the close of the public comment period will be added to the record after the meeting.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6414173404
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6414173404
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux


 

 

ACCESSIBILITY INFORMATION: 
Board Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities and others who need assistance. Individuals who need special 
assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation (including auxiliary aids or services) to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting and access meeting-related materials should contact Matt Ball, District Manager, at least 48 
hours before the meeting at (530) 533-6038. Advanced notification will enable the District to swiftly resolve such requests to 
ensure accessibility. All requests for special accommodations and/or alternative format documents must be made 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

PUBLIC RECORDS: 
Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a meeting are available for public inspection. Those 
records that are distributed after the agenda posting deadline for the meeting are available for public inspection at the same 
time they are distributed to all or a majority of the members of the Board. The Board has designated the District's website 
located at https://www.ButteMosquito.com as the place for making those public records available for inspection. The 
documents may also be obtained by calling the District Manager. 
 
1. Regular Board of Trustees Meeting Time:   4:00 PM  Date:  April 14, 2021 
 
2. Call to Order – 4:00 PM Roll Call 
 
3. Persons Wishing to Address the Board on Items Not on the Agenda (limit to 5 minutes): 
 
4. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of:  March 10, 2021 
 
5. Persons Wishing to Address the Board Pertaining to Closed Session Matters:     
 
6. Closed Session Announcement (District Legal Counsel Present):  None 
 
7. Reports: (7.1 – 7.3) 
 
7.1 District Manager's Report   
 

The District Manager will provide a brief report on current District business and activities.  The Manager will also 
report on District employees, meetings attended, and current projects.  
 

7.2 2020 / 2021 Third Quarter Fiscal Report 
 

The District Manager and Office Manager will review the 2020/2021 3rd quarter fiscal report. 
 
7.3 2021 BCMVCD 1st Quarter Newsletter  
 

The Assistant Manager will review the District’s 2021 1st Quarter Newsletter. 
 
8. Policy Matters: (8.1 – 8.5) 
 
8.1 Review Bids and Considering Hiring an Architect for the New Building Project or Reassess the Need 
 

The Board was asked to review bids and consider hiring an architect/engineering firm to commence with the new 
building project at the March 10, 2021, Board meeting.  The Board requested legal counsel to review the bids and 
to report back to the Board at this meeting.  The Board will hear a report from the District’s legal counsel then be 
asked to consider if it wishes to select an architect, authorize the District Manager to negotiate a mutually agreeable 
contract if a firm is selected, or to cease all new building processes.   

https://www.buttemosquito.com/


 

 

8.2 Consider the 2021/2022 Fiscal Budgets, Receive, Review, and Order Posted for 30 Days  
 

The Board will be asked to consider receiving, reviewing, and ordering posted for 30 days the 2021/2022 
preliminary budgets.  The District Manager and Office Manager will review and explain the proposed budgets.  
 

8.3 Consider Voting for a Commissioner and an Alternate to Serve on the Butte LAFCo Commission 
 
 The Board will be asked to vote for a Regular Non-Enterprise Commissioner and an Alternate Commissioner to 

serve on the Butte LAFCo Commission.   
 
8.4 Consider an Agreement and Election to California Employers’ Pension Prefunding Trust Fund (CEPPT) 
 
 The Board will be asked to consider establishing in the State Treasury the California Employers’ Pension 

Prefunding Trust Fund (CEPPT).  The trust is to prefund employer contributions to a defined benefit pension plan. 
 
8.5 Consider Approval and Adoption of Resolution #21-02 and Resolution #21-03 
 
 The Board will be asked to consider approving and adopting Resolution #21-02, a Resolution of Appreciation for 
 Meritorious Service to the Citizens of Butte County and Hamilton City for Phillip Henry and Resolution #21-03, a 
 Resolution of Appreciation for Meritorious Service to the Citizens of Butte County and Hamilton City for Don Lasik.      
 
9. Topic of the Month:   

 
The Vector Ecologist / Fish Biologist will provide an update on the District’s mosquitofish program.  
 

10. Approve Payment of The Bills: 
 

The Board will be asked to review the demands made upon the District for the past month and consider approving 
the payment of the bills. 
 

11. Personnel:   
 
 The District’s Office Assistant did not successfully fulfill the positions probationary period. 
 
12. Correspondence:  N/A 
 
13.  Other Business:   N/A 
 
14. Persons Wishing to Address the Board Pertaining to Closed Session Matters:     
 
15. Closed Session Matters (District Legal Counsel Not Present): (15.1-15.2) 
 
15.1 Employee Performance Evaluation – PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION.   
 Gov’t. Code 54957.  Title, District Manager. 
 
15.2 Labor Negotiations – CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR(s). Gov’t. Code 54957.6.  
 District Designated Representative(s):  District Manager Ball.  Employment Agreement extension. 
 
16. Adjournment: (Next Regular Meeting of the BCMVCD Board of Trustees is May 12, 2021) 



Regular Minutes of the Board of Trustees of the Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control 
District Meeting held March 10, 2021 

 
Members Present:  President Dr. Albert Beck, Michael Barth, Bruce Johnson, Vice President Dr. 
Larry Kirk, Philip LaRocca, Steve Ostling, Assistant Secretary Melissa Schuster, Secretary Bo 
Sheppard, and Carl Starkey. 
 
Members Excused:  None. 

 
Members Absent:  None. 

Also Present:  District Manager Matt Ball, Assistant Manager Doug Weseman, Office Manager 
Maritza Sandoval, Vector Ecologist / Fish Biologist Ryan Rothenwander, and representatives from 
CalPERS Prefunding Programs Bob Honer and Matt Goss. 

1. The Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control 
District held on March 10, 2021, was live streamed via Zoom at: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6414173404. 
 

2. The March 10, 2021, Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District regular meeting of the 
Board of Trustees was called to order at 4:00 PM by President Beck.   
 

3. Seeing and hearing no persons wishing to address the Board on items not on the agenda, 
President Beck proceeded to request approval of the minutes. 

 
4. After review it was then moved by Member Kirk, seconded by Member Sheppard, and passed 

unanimously to approve the minutes of the Board of Trustees meeting held February 10, 2021, as 
written. 
 

5. No persons wishing to address the Board on closed session matters. 
 

6. No closed session matters. 
 

7. Reports (7.1 – 7.2) 
 

7.1 Under item 7.1 of reports, Bob Honer and Matt Goss of CalPERS Prefunding Programs provided a 
presentation on various options, strategies, and programs available to expedite paying down the 
District’s unfunded accrued liability. Following the presentation and questions, the Board directed 
staff to begin the process to establish a California Employers Pension Prefunding Trust (CEPPT) 
with CalPERS, 115 Trust Fund. 
 

7.2 Under item 7.2 of reports, District Manager’s Report, the District Manager reported on February 11, 
2021, the District was closed for Lincoln’s Birthday and on February 15, 2021, for President’s Day.   
 
On February 16, 2021, the District Manager attended via Zoom the MVCAC Executive Board 
meeting.  This is a new monthly meeting where all member district managers attend to discuss 
legislation, action items of the MVCAC, plan, and discuss challenges for the upcoming season.  
Also, on this date, the District Manager and Office Manager attended a conference call with Bob 
Honer of CalPERS Prefunding Programs to continue to explore unfunded liability strategies and to 
confirm their willingness to present to the Board at the March Board meeting.    
 
On February 18, 2021, the District Manager met with Northstar Engineering as well as Streamline 
Engineering to walk the proposed building project, outline the project, and solicit interest to submit 
a proposal.   
 
On February 19 and March 5, 2021, the District Manager attended the biweekly MVCAC 
Legislative and Regulatory conference call.  The meeting discussed pending and drafted legislative 
bills, the state budget, COVID-19 issues, and reviewed a few regulatory issues.    
 
On February 22, 2021, the District Manager and Assistant Manager attended a conference call 
with Matsom & Isom to further explore and discuss transitioning away from a desktop server to 
online cloud server with better protections, storage, and backup capabilities.    
 
On February 23, 2021, the District Manager attended the Sac Valley Region via Zoom.  The region 
discussed the upcoming MVCAC Board meeting and CalSurv funding issues.  
 
On February 23, 2021, all District staff received live CPR, first aid, and AED testing to conclude the 
online portion of the recertification.  District staff have received their 2-year certification in CPR, 
first aid, and AED. Also, on this date as well as February 24, 2021, the District Manager and Office 
Manager attended remotely the VCJPA Annual Conference.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6414173404


On March 3 and 4, 2021, all licensed District staff attended remotely a continuing education 
conference on rodents.  Also, on these same dates following the Rodent Academy, the District 
Manager and Office Manager attended SDRMA’s Spring Education Days.  Also, on March 3, 2021, 
the District was invited as part of the Food and Agriculture tier to receive dose 1 of the COVID-19 
vaccine.  
 
On March 8, 2021, the District Manager attended the MVCAC / CDFW AB 896 working group 
meeting via Zoom. 
 
Currently, the District is still following all the procedures, protocols, and worker protection policies 
reported to the Board in February. The District offices are still closed to the public, but have 2 
locations to pick up mosquitofish, answering any and all service requests, and providing all 
services as normal.  District continues to be on good supply of personal protective equipment and 
sanitization products.    
 
The District Manager continues to follow the Butte County Public Health Department’s Public 
Health Officer’s guidance and recommendations and is monitoring the Governor’s press 
conferences.  The District received updated Cal/OSHA requirements for employers regarding 
COVID-19. The District’s current COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) has been updated to 
comply with Cal/OSHA’s new requirements.  
 
The District has experienced employees missing work due to isolation/quarantine orders, 
experiencing COVID-19 like symptoms, as well as COVID-19 positive case(s).  Due to the District’s 
proper practices such as masks, sanitization efforts, and social distancing, no other employees 
have missed work due to workplace exposures. 
 
The Board discussed COVID-19 moving forward, considerations such as the April’s Board 
meeting, District office closure, and employee worker protection policies.  The consensus of the 
Board was to keep the District offices closed to the public, to continue to operate under the 
procedures and policies that have been followed the past eleven months, and to continue to host 
the Board meetings remotely. The District will reassess these procedures next month. 
 
After this final item of reports, President Beck asked the District Manager to proceed to policy 
matters.   
 

8. Policy matters (8.1 – 8.6) 
 

8.1 Under item 8.1 of policy matters, the Board was asked to consider a special service agreement 
between Ron O’Hanlon and Associates and the District. It was then moved by Member Sheppard, 
seconded by Member Schuster and approved unanimously to sign the special service agreement 
between Ron O’Hanlon and Associates and the District.   
 

8.2 Under item 8.2 of policy matters, the Board was asked to review bids and consider hiring an 
architect / engineering firm to commence with the new building project. After a lengthy discussion, 
no action was taken nor needed. The District Manager was directed to present the proposals to the 
District’s legal counsel and report the findings back to the April Board meeting. 
 

8.3 Under item 8.3 of policy matters, the Board was asked to review bids and consider hiring an 
asphalt paving company for the front driveway Capital Improvement project. At the August 12, 
2021, Board meeting, the Board directed staff to hire a civil engineer to provide a scope of 
services, plot a map, and an itemized bid sheet. The quotes before the Board to review were 
based on the civil engineers bit sheet. It was then moved by Member Kirk, and seconded by 
Member Starkey and approved unanimously to hire Franklin Construction Inc. for the front 
driveway Capital Improvement project in the amount of $167,258.00 which includes the base bid, 
additive bid #1, and additive bid #2. 
 

8.4 Under item 8.4 of policy matters, the Office Manager opened sealed bids for the surplus vehicles. 
The winning bids were announced; Truck #151, 2004 Chevy Silverado winning bid $3,000.00; 
Truck #159, 2007 Ford F-150 winning bid $5,010.00; Truck #164, 2009 Dodge Dakota winning bid 
$1,800.00; Truck #168, 2010 Dodge Dakota winning bid $3,500.00. No action taken, nor needed. 
 

8.5 Under item 8.5 of policy matters, per the conditions of the Employment Agreement between the 
District and District Manager, the manager must remind and request an annual performance 
evaluation.  The Board and District Manager will meet in closed session at April's Board Meeting to 
discuss the evaluation.  
 

8.6 Under item 8.6 of policy matters, the Board was asked to consider if it would like to extend the 
current employment agreement with the District Manager.  Should the Board want to proceed, the 
consideration for a one-year contract extension will be held during the April Board meeting.  Per 



the conditions of the Employment Agreement between the District and District Manager, the 
manager must request a one-year contract extension.   
 

9. Under topic of the month, the District’s Vector Ecologist / Fish Biologist, Ryan Rothenwander, 
provided a report on Mosquito surveillance traps utilized by the District.  

 
10. After reviewing the demands made upon the District for the past month, it was then moved by 

Member Sheppard, seconded by Member Johnson, and passed unanimously to authorize checks 
numbered 48963 through 49053 be signed and distributed.  Expenditures for the month totaled 
$194,325.45. 

 
11. Under personnel, the District Manager reported that on March 1, 2021, Kenny Armstrong and 

Kellen Larson commenced employment with the District as Mosquito and Vector Control 
Specialists. Also, on this same date, Mike Mattia commenced employment with the District as a 
Mosquito and Vector Control Assistant while also fulfilling his internship.  

 
12. No correspondence items to report. 
 
13. No other business to report. 
 
14. No persons wishing to address the Board pertaining to closed session matters.  
 
15. No closed session items. 
 
16. President Beck announced adjournment at 5:55 PM and concluded by stating that the next regular 

meeting of the BCMVCD Board of Trustees would meet at 4:00 PM on April 14, 2021, via Zoom. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
James “Bo” Sheppard, 
Secretary 



MANAGER'S REPORT                APRIL 2021 
 
On March 11, 2021, the District completed the monthly staff meeting and all vehicle inspections.  The 
District’s Safety Committee also met on this date. 
 
On March 15, 2021, the District Manager and Vector Ecologist / Fish Biologist attended and presented at 
the Lyme Disease Support Group’s conference remotely via Zoom.   
 
On March16, 2021, the District Manager attended via Zoom the MVCAC Executive Board meeting.  This 
monthly meeting is where all member district managers attend to discuss legislation, action items of the 
MVCAC, plan, and discuss challenges for the upcoming season.  Also, on this date, representatives of 
Clarke conducted the District’s annual droplet testing free of charge.   
 
On March 17, 2021, the District Manager and Office Manager attended a meeting with Butte LAFCo and 
OMAD’s legal counsel to discuss the current status of OMAD’s dissolution process and for the District to 
reaffirm its position that the District does not wish to annex OMAD with outstanding liability and/or debts. 
 
On March 19, 2021, the District Manager attended the biweekly MVCAC Legislative and Regulatory 
conference call.  The meeting discussed pending and drafted legislative bills, the state budget, COVID-19 
issues, and reviewed a few regulatory issues.   
 
On March 22, 2021, the District Manager and Office Manager attended a free of charge catch basin 
treatment presentation hosted by Valent BioSciences. 
 
District employees that voluntarily received their first COVID-19 vaccination shot on February 24, 2021, 
received their 2nd vaccination shot on March 24, 2021. 
 
On March 31, 2021, the District Manager hosted the District’s biannual management meeting.   
 
The District was closed on April 1, 2021, in observance of Cesar Chavez Day. 
 
On April 6, 2021, the District Manager met with Katja Townsend of Assemblymember Gallagher’s office to 
discuss the importance of mosquito surveillance and control and to request funding for CalSurv as part of 
the MVCAC’s Legislative Days (April 6-7).  Sutter-Yuba attended the meeting as well. 
 
On April 12, 2021, the District Manager hosted via zoom the annual coordination meeting with USFWS, 
Sutter-Yuba MVCD, Colusa MAD, and Glenn County MVCD.  Participating districts reviewed the USFWS 
2021 Special Use Permit and Pesticide Use Permits. 
 
On April 14, 2021, the District Manager attended a webinar hosted by AMCA on the nontarget effects of 
mosquito control insecticides on pollinators.   
 
COVID-19 UPDATE 
Currently, the District is still following all the procedures, protocols, and worker protection policies reported 
to the Board in April.  The District offices are still closed to the public, but have 2 locations to pick up 
mosquitofish, answering any and all service requests, and providing all services as normal.  District 
continues to be on good supply of personal protective equipment and sanitization products.    
 
The District Manager continues to follow the Butte County Public Health Department’s Public Health 
Officer’s guidance and recommendations and is monitoring the Governor’s daily press conferences.  The 
District received detailed guidance for employers regarding COVID-19 infections and exposures.  The 
District’s current procedures and policies are in place to minimize the loss of the District’s workforce.  
 
The District has experienced employees missing work due to isolation/quarantine orders as well as COVID 
positive case(s).  Due to the District’s proper practices such as masks, sanitization efforts, and social 
distancing, no other employees have missed work due to workplace exposures as of today. 
 



The Board will discuss COVID-19 moving forward, considerations such as the May Board Meeting, District 
office closure, and employee worker protection policies.  
 
OUTSTANDING INVOICES 
The District has one invoice that remains unpaid for 2020 aerial treatments. The invoiced is Jason 
Markstein, of North Fork Ranch. Invoice BU-20-00087 (Attachment #1) was issued on 8/27/2020 in the 
amount of $1,792.43. Between the time frame of November 2020 to March 2021, District staff made 
multiple attempts to collect payment and were unsuccessful. Emails, phone calls, and letters including via 
registered mail (Attachment #2) were sent. On 3/23/2021, Mr. Markstein returned the District’s call and 
asked to speak to Assistant Manager to discuss outstanding invoice. At the time Mr. Markstein stated he 
would not be sending payment. A copy of the executed MOU between Mr. Markstein and the District is 
enclosed (Attachment #3). 
 



Attachment  #1















Attachment #2





Attachment # 3























The 2021 mosquito season has started and the District’s surveillance program is now underway. The 
District’s 54 sentinel chickens will arrive on April 15th and 42 of the chickens will be evenly distributed 
���������������������������������������������������
bi-weekly and tested for mosquito-borne viruses. The District’s 31 gravid traps and 28 New Jersey 
light traps will be in place on April 12th and 13th respectively. The District utilizes the trap counts from 
���������������������������ector Control Specialists throughout the County. 
Along with the surveillance program, mosquito control has once again commenced. Urban and resi-
dential areas are areas of concern for spring hatch mosquitoes, for these are the mosquito species 
that can carry and transmit such diseases as West Nile virus (WNV). Larval inspections and larval 
control are currently underway in municipal and private sources such as storm drains, catch basins, 
retention ponds, detention ponds, and other man made mosquito-breeding sources. Floodwater 
sources are also being monitored and treated as needed. Identifying mosquito sources early in the 
spring and eliminating the mosquitoes in their larval state is essential to the overall success of lower-
ing the adult populations that will threaten communities in the summer. 

Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District
5117 Larkin Road

Oroville, CA. 95965
&

Butte County Mosquito
 

Since 1948

BUTTE COUNTY MOSQUITO
AND

VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT &

Bu
tte

 County Mosquito 

Since 1948

1st Quarter, 2021                                                                                                                   Newsletter

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Butte County Mosquito and 
Vector Control District is primarily to supress 
mosquito-transmitted disease and also to reduce
the annoyance levels of mosquitoes and diseases
������������������������
through environmentally compatible control prac-
tices and public education.
 

CONTACT INFORMATION        

Butte County Mosquito and Vector Contol District
5117 Larkin Road, Oroville, CA. 95965

Phone: (530) 533-6038, (530) 342-7350
Fax: (530) 534-9916

Website: www.BUTTEMOSQUITO.com

 “FIGHT THE BITE!
 

2020/2021 TICK SURVEILLANCE

2021 SURVEILLANCE

The District remains committed to lowering the risk of tick bites and tick-borne disease through pub-
lic education and outreach. The District routinely conducts tick surveillance in high use public land 
areas, such as Upper Bidwell Park and the Lake Oroville Recreation area to provide the public with 
the knowledge of where and when ticks are abundant and key places to avoid while enjoying the 
outdoors. The tick species of highest concern to the District is the Western black-legged tick (Ixodes 
pacificus), commonly referred to as the deer tick. The heightened concern with this tick is due to its 
ability to transmit Lyme disease and other tick-borne illnesses. Residents are reminded that the best 
way to avoid getting a tick-borne illness, such as Lyme disease, is to ensure that you don’t get bit-
ten by a tick. A good precaution to take after visiting an area that possibly had ticks is to thoroughly 
check yourself, your children, and your pets for ticks. For more information on ticks the District has a 
����������������������������������������������������
they are also posted to the District’s website at www.ButteMosquito.com. In the future, the District 
plans on experimenting with new control methods to achieve lower tick populations thus reducing the 
risk of tick-borne disease to the County’s residents. 

The California Department of Public Health’s dead 
�������������������������April 
12th through mid-October�����������
dead birds are urged to call the West Nile 
virus hot line at 1-877-968-BIRD (2473). The hot 
line is available from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., 
Monday through Friday. The public can also report 
dead birds online at www.westnile.ca.gov or by 
visiting  www.BUTTEMOSQUITO.com

DEAD BIRD HOTLINE

With Butte County’s current COVID-19 risk level at 
��������������������������
only at the District headquarters in Oroville and in 
�������������������������-
ations will return to normal once the State mandate 
has been lifted. 

MOSQUITOFISH

This institution is an equal opportunity provider and 
employer.

2021 First Qtr Report.indd   1 3/31/2021   4:26:18 PM



For the sixteenth year in a row, the District has contracted with an aerial surveillance service to survey 
un-maintained swimming pools and other possible mosquito breeding sources (target areas)
in the District. This year, the District has again contracted with Ron O’Hanlon and Associates. Ron
O’Hanlon has an extensive background in geographic imaging having spent many years creating
maps for the United States Forest Service. O’Hanlon and �������������������
��������������������������������������������������
the location using global positioning systems (GPS). A report is then constructed from this data. The
�������������������������������������������������
sources, is then submitted to the District. The District’s Mosquito and Vector Control Specialists can
����������������������������������������������������
they become adults is vital and this program gives the specialists the ability to see a lot of mosquito
breeding sources that otherwise would not be seen” said Matt Ball, District Manager for Butte County
Mosquito and V����������������������������������������������
���������������������Additionally��������������������������
aerial surveillance program. This program focuses on the surveillance of large properties such as
�����������������������������������������������The Dis-
trict’s pilot utilizes a Cessna aircraft that can hold up to four individuals (three Mosquito Control Spe-
cialists and the pilot). From the air the Mosquito Control Specialists can take aerial photographs and
�����������������������������������This information is then taken to
��������������������������������������

AERIAL SURVEILLANCE
With Butte County’s COVID-19 risk level currently at “Substantial”, there are no current face to face 
public education events scheduled. The District realizes that some events may be rescheduled for 
������������������������������������������������������s 
residents at these events.

All of the events that the District attends have an excellent insect display��������������
and mosquito larvae display. �������������������������������������
�������������������������������������������

The District also gives classroom presentations at local schools in Butte County. The classroom pre-
sentations include “Trouble with Ticks” and “Fight the Bite”. 

The District will again partner with Stott Advertising on a billboard campaign. This year’s slogan is 
“Fight the Bite!”. The six billboards will rotate throughout the county from May through September. 
The new billboard uses the District’s new website address “www.ButteMosquito.com”.

The District has also contracted with Action News Now, for a 30 second mosquito awareness animat-
ed commercial. Also, the District will continue with its radio advertising, and also it’s print advertising.

2021 PUBLIC EDUCATION CAMPAIGN

Example of an aerial photograph

2021 Billboard Campaign

BUTTEMOSQUITO.COM

2021 First Qtr Report.indd   2 3/31/2021   4:26:21 PM



 

 

February 25, 2021 

 

Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District 

Matthew Ball – District Manager 

5117 Larkin Road 

Oroville, CA 96965 

  

RE: Design Services for Building Addition in Oroville, CA 

  

Dear Matthew, 

 

Russell Gallaway Associates (“RGA”) offers the following proposal for services to Butte County Mosquito 

and Vector Control District (“Client”) for the above-referenced project.  

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

RGA will provide the following Scope of Services to Client for the schematic design of approximately 1,800 

square feet of new building construction. This proposal is for the schematic design phase only (Part 1). I 

have included a comprehensive scope for future services (Parts 2-7) for your review for a fee to be 

determined. Scope of Services to be provided by RGA include the following:

 

Part 1 -  Schematic Design 

1.01 RGA will prepare Schematic Design Documents for confirmation of design direction, preliminary 

construction budgets, and general code compliance. Deliverables include: 

.01 Preliminary Floor Plans 

.02 Preliminary Site Plan 

.03 Preliminary Code Analysis 

.04 Preliminary Exterior Elevations 

.05 Preliminary Building Sections 

1.02 Prepare recommendations and preliminary conceptual design solutions regarding exterior 

materials, building assemblies, and structural systems. 

1.03 Prepare two (2) exterior conceptual perspective image renderings. 

.01 Revisions include up to one (1) major and two (2) minor revisions to perspective images. 



 

 

1.04 Attend up to two (2) Schematic Design meetings with Client for review and approval of Schematic 

Design Documents. 

Part 2 -  Design Development 

2.01 Based on Owner- and Client-Approved Schematic Design Documents, prepare Design 

Development Documents for Owner and Client approval. The Design Development Documents 

shall illustrate and describe the development of the approved Schematic Design Documents and 

shall consist of drawings and other documents including plans, sections, elevations, typical 

construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building systems to fix and describe the size and 

character of the project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical systems, and 

other appropriate elements. 

2.02 Respond to value engineering revisions from Client. Significant changes in the project shall be 

addressed per Assumptions and Exclusions. 

2.03 RGA’s consultant shall prepare a topographic survey of the site as required for the project. 

2.04 Prepare a planning and architectural review submittal package for the City of Oroville. 

.01 Attend and provide representation at meetings for City of Oroville Planning Commission, if 

required. 

2.05 Prepare two (2) exterior conceptual perspective images. 

.02 Revisions include up to one (1) major and two (2) minor revisions to perspective images. 

2.06 Conduct up to two (2) meetings with Client for review and approval of Design Development 

Documents. 

Part 3 -  Construction Documentation 

3.01 Based on Client-Approved Design Development Documents, prepare Construction Documents for 

submittal to the City of Oroville for securement of building permit. The Construction Documents 

shall illustrate and describe the further development of the approved Design Development 

Documents and shall consists of drawings setting forth in detail the quality levels and performance 

criteria of materials and systems and other requirements for the construction of the project. In 

order to construct the project, RGA’s consultants will provide Mechanical Designs, Electrical Design, 

Plumbing Designs, and Civil Engineering. 

3.02 Prepare structural design calculations for the project. 

3.03 Prepare Title 24 Energy Calculations Compliance Documentation based upon Mechanical and 

Electrical specifications provided by Client’s consultants. 

3.04 Conduct up to two (2) meetings with Client to review and facilitate the Client’s approval of 

Construction Documents. Deliverables include: 

.01 One (1) approved set of Construction Documents. 

Part 4A - Green Building Standards Code Compliance (As Required) 

4A.01 Prepare additional design and documentation regarding RGA’s Scope of Services to demonstrate 

compliance with the California Green Building Standards Code. 

.01 Due to inconsistencies in jurisdictional enforcement of the California Green Building 

Standards Code (CGBSC), this proposal considers this part to be required if the Authority 

Having Jurisdiction enforces compliance with the CGBSC. 

Part 4B – Building Commissioning (As Required) 

4B.01 Prepare additional documentation to demonstrate compliance with the building commissioning 

requirements of the California Energy Code and the CGBSC. 



 

 

.01 Review of Owner’s or Owner Representative’s Project Requirements (OPR). Note: OPR shall 

be provided by Owner or Owner’s Representative with assistance by Owner’s 

Commissioning Agent if required 

4B.02 Due to the size of this project (less than 10,000 square-feet), minimum building commissioning is 

required by the California Energy Code. 

.02 Due to inconsistencies in jurisdictional enforcement of the building commissioning 

requirements of the California Energy Code, this proposal considers Part 4B to be required 

if the Authority Having Jurisdiction enforces compliance with the building commissioning 

requirements of the California Energy Code. 

Part 5 -  Plan Check Services 

5.01 RGA will provide Construction Documents and forms to Client for submittal to the City of Oroville 

for plan check processing and permit. 

5.02 RGA will respond to City of Oroville plan check comments regarding our design to secure permit 

approvals. 

Part 6 -  Bidding Assistance 

6.01 RGA will produce a specification package to include with the approved plans for bidding purposes. 

6.02 RGA will respond to bidder RFIs and issue bid addenda, as necessary. 

6.03 RGA will attend a pre-bid walk with potential bidders and attend the bid opening. 

Part 7 -  Construction Administration 

7.01 Construction Administration is included as an extra service to be billed hourly with an estimated 

budget amount as indicated below. Any changes to the plans initiated by Client that result in the 

issuance of clarification drawings, change orders, additional drafting, engineering and/or review 

of alternates and/or site visits after permit is obtained will be billed hourly as an extra service in 

accordance with the attached Schedule of Hourly Rates and Reimbursable Charges.  

7.02 RGA will review product submittals. 

7.03 RGA will provide construction observation at project milestones to verify compliance with design 

documents. 

7.04 RGA will review contractor pay requests. 

 

RGA proposes to complete the above Scope of Services on a fee basis as follows: 

 

Part 1    $ 12,000.00  

Part 2   $ 10,275.00 (estimated) 
Part 3   $ 28,350.00 (estimated) 
Part 4   $ 2,500.00 (estimated, if required) 
Part 5   Included in Part 3 
Part 6   $ 3,375.00 (estimated) 
Part 7   $ 13,500.00 (estimated) 
 

 

Total estimated design fee = $70,000.00 



 

 

ASSUMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS 

This proposal is based on the following assumptions and exclusions. Additional services not included in the 

above Scope of Services, if required, will be billed per the attached Schedule of Rates and Reimbursables. 

1. Documents prepared under this contract are schematic only and not for construction. 

2. Preparation of “as-built” post-construction drawings is not included but is available. 

3. Client shall provide a plot plan depicting building placement, property lines, and applicable 

easements in CAD format. 

4. RGA is not responsible for means and methods of demolition or construction. 

5. RGA will provide a Preliminary Opinion of Cost at the end of the schematic phase. 

Additional detailed estimates prior to bidding of the project may be included in a later 

phase if requested. 

6. Fixtures, equipment, and data systems for the space shall be designed by others. 

7. Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing (MEP) designs are not included in the Schematic 

Phase (Part 1) 

8. This schematic proposal does not include additional sub-consultant work that is required 

including, but not limited to, Landscaping, Fire Sprinkler, Low Voltage and Civil engineering 

design. 

9. This proposal does not include structural, materials, soils testing or commissioning. 

10. This proposal does not include post-tension foundation designs.  Foundation design 

assumes basic slab on grade with pad footings for client supplied metal building loading 

reactions.  Expansive soils, should they be present on site, shall be removed or treated per 

the recommendations of the geotechnical engineering report. 

11. This proposal excludes MS4 low impact stormwater design and registration. If the project 

requires MS4 design, it can be provided for an additional fee. 

12. This proposal does not include furniture design, specifications, or purchasing. 

13. Client or Owner will retain the services of a commissioning agent if required. 

14. Extra service items to be billed on an hourly basis include, but are not limited to the 

following: 

• Payment of any fees 

• Services required due to any changes in the project after completing Schematic Design 

Documents. 

• Preparation of documents for bid alternatives 

15. Plots as required for permitting will be billed separately as a reimbursable expense as 

itemized below. It should be assumed that at a minimum, a submittal and resubmittal will 

be required for the local jurisdiction. Check sets of drawings will be provided to client as 

reductions on 11” x 17” bond paper. Full sized prints are available upon request and will be 

billed as a reimbursable. The client is entitled to an electronic pdf set of drawings that can 

be outsourced to other printing providers, but it should be noted: most jurisdictions require 

a “wet signature” on all pages of the submittal sets.  

16. If any of the following circumstances affect the Architect’s services for the Project, the 

Architect may, at the Client’s reasonable discretion, be entitled to an appropriate 

adjustment in the Architect’s schedule and compensation. 

.01  Change in the instructions or approvals given by the Owner or Client that 

necessitate revisions in Instruments of Service. 

.02  Enactment of revisions of codes, laws or regulations or official interpretations which 

necessitate changes to previously prepared Instruments of Service. 

.03 Decision of the Owner or Client not rendered in a timely manner. 



 

 

.04 Changes in the Project including, but not limited to, size, quality, complexity, the 

Owner’s or Client’s schedule or budget or procurement method. 

05. Failure of performance on the part of the Owner or Client, or the Owner’s or Client’s 

consultants or contractors. 

.06 Preparation for an attendance at a public hearing, at the request of the Owner or 

Client, or in the Owner’s or Client’s behalf, a dispute resolution proceeding or a legal 

proceeding except where the Architect is party thereto unless otherwise included 

in Scope of Services. 

 

Statements for services of RGA will be submitted on a monthly basis. Statements will be mailed to the 

address provided by the Client and will be immediately due and payable. Payment is Net Due thirty days 

from invoice date. If payment is not so made, interest will be due on the amount of the statement at the 

rate of 18 percent per annum beginning thirty (30) days after the date of the statement until the same is 

paid. Compensation for RGA's services shall not be contingent upon Client’s ability to collect from others. 

 

It would be unfair for RGA to be exposed to liability for his or her failure to perform a service not included 

in the scope of work described in this agreement. Client hereby waives any claim against RGA and 

agrees to defend, indemnify and hold RGA harmless from any claim or liability for injury or loss allegedly 

arising from RGA's failure to perform a service not included in the scope of the work described in this 

agreement. Client further agrees to compensate RGA for any time spent or expenses incurred by RGA in 

defense of any such claim, in accordance with RGA's prevailing fee schedule and expense 

reimbursement policy.  

 

This agreement may be terminated by the Client upon not less than seven days’ written notice to RGA in 

the event that the Project is permanently abandoned.  If the Project is abandoned by the Client for more 

than 90 consecutive days, RGA may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice.   

 

In the event of termination not the fault of RGA, RGA and its consultants shall be compensated for 

services performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due. 

 

Due to scheduling issues, RGA reserves the right to withdraw or modify this proposal if it is not accepted 

within 30 days. If you have any questions, or require any additional information please give us a call at 

(530) 342-0302. Thank you for considering Russell, Gallaway Associates, Inc. for your design needs.  

 

 

Best Regards,     Accepted By: 

 

 

 

Don Russell, P.E., CASp   Matthew Ball 

Lic. No. C58201    Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 

 

 



 

 

2021 RGA SCHEDULE OF RATES and REIMBURSABLES 

 
Hourly Rates 

Principal Architect / Engineer ................................................................................... $198.00/hr 

Licensed Architect / Engineer .................................................................................. $155.00/hr 

Project Manager / Senior Drafter  ......................................................................... $135.00/hr 

CAD Operator / Jr. Engineer .................................................................................... $100.00/hr 

Jr. CAD Operator  .......................................................................................................... $80.00/hr 

Clerical……. .......................................................................................................................... $60.00/hr 

 

Reimbursables 

Blueprints printed outside of RGA .......................................................................... Cost +10% 

 

Computer Plots               

Line Drawings 

      24”x36” Bond  ........................................................................................................... $1.80 each 

      30”x42” Bond  ........................................................................................................... $2.65 each  

      36”x48” Bond ............................................................................................................ $3.60 each  

                                                    

Presentation Drawings 

      8.5”x11” Bond - Color  ............................................................................................. $1.00 each 

      11”x17” Bond - Color  ............................................................................................... $2.00 each 

      24”x36” Bond - Color  ........................................................................................... $16.00 each 

      30”x42” Bond - Color  ........................................................................................... $24.00 each 

      24”x36” Bond - Color – Mounted on Foam Core ...................................... $27.50 each 

      30”x42” Bond – Color – Mounted on Foam Core ..................................... $35.00 each 

      8.5”x11” Photo - Color  ........................................................................................... $10.00 each 

      11”x17” Photo - Color  .............................................................................................. $15.00 each 

      24”x36” Photo - Color  .......................................................................................... $40.00 each 

      30”x42” Photo – Color ........................................................................................... $65.00 each 

      24”x36” Photo – Color - Mounted on Foam Core..................................... $50.00 each 

      30”x42” Photo – Color – Mounted on Foam Core  ................................... $75.00 each 

                                         

Photocopies 

      8-1/2" x 11" .................................................................................................................. $0.10/copy 

      8-1/2" x 14 ................................................................................................................... $0.15/copy 

      11" x 17 ............................................................................................................................ $0.20/copy 

      Copies printed outside of RGA .......................................................................... Cost + 10% 

Miscellaneous 

      Mileage ..................................................................................................................  58 cents/mile 

      All Other Project Related Items ........................................................................ Cost + 10% 

 

As of Jan 1, 2021 



  

 

 

555 Main St., Suite 300 NICHOLS, MELBURG & ROSSETTO  Phone (530) 891-1710 
Chico, CA 95928 ARCHITECTS + ENGINEE RS  Fax (530) 891-0138 
 Redding  Chico  &  Santa Rosa rogers@NM&Rdesign.com 

 
 

 

Architectural and Engineering Design Services Agreement 

Between Client & Architect 

 

 

This AGREEMENT is made on February 3, 2021 
 
Between the CLIENT: Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District (MVCD) 

5117 Larkin Road 
Oroville, CA 95965 

 
And the ARCHITECT: Nichols, Melburg & Rossetto (NM&R) 
    555 Main St., Suite 300 
    Chico, CA 95928 
 
For the PROJECT: New Annex Office Building  
 
LOCATION:   5117 Larkin Road 

Oroville, CA 95965 
 
 
SECTION 1 – DESCRIPTION AND UNDERSTANDING OF PROJECT 
 
1.1 This project consists of the Schematic Design (SD), Design Development (DD), 

Construction Document (CD), Bidding & Negotiation and Construction 
Administration (CA) phases for a new single-story building containing 
approximately 1,800 square feet. Space programming data will be provided by 
MVCD. 
The building will be located to the north of MVCD’s existing office building and 
will include a covered exterior patio area to link the two administrative office 
facilities. 
The building will be designed to meet the needs of three primary MVCD uses – 
Laboratory, Board Room and a private Manager’s Office. 
The new annex design will also include two ADA accessible restrooms 
 
The building will be classified as a “non-essential services” facility and the 
exterior façade will be designed to complement the existing building, creating a 
“campus” environment. 
 
 



 

 

Butte Co, MVCD – New Annex Building 
Architectural and Engineering Design Services Proposal 

Feb. 3, 2021 
Page 2 of 11 

 

1.2 The A-E design team will comprise architectural, structural, electrical, 
mechanical, plumbing, security/low voltage and cost estimating consultants. 

 

 
SECTION 2 – ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES & RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The following services comprise the sum of all the services of NM&R and its 
consultants.  
  
2.1 PRE-DESIGN SERVICES 
 

2.1.1 Verify existing conditions as required. 
2.1.2 Convene meetings with MVCD to confirm space programming and project 

requirements. 
 
2.2 SCHEMATIC DESIGN (SD) PHASE SERVICES 
 

2.2.1 Prepare preliminary design drawings and outline specifications, including 
services of the consultants 
2.2.2 Meet with client to review and adjust design. 
2.2.3 Prepare color exterior elevation and perspectives. 

2.2.4 Coordinate preliminary design with consultants.  Project consultants 
retained by the Architect are: 

  Structural Engineer 
  Electrical Engineer 

 Mechanical / Plumbing Engineer 
 Security / Low Voltage 
2.2.5 Prepare schematic level opinion of probable construction cost. 

 
2.3 DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (DD) PHASE SERVICES 
 

2.3.1 Develop design and specifications to Design Development (DD) level, 
including services of consultants.  
2.3.2 Coordinate with consultants. 

2.3.3 Refine opinion of probable construction cost. 
2.3.4 Respond to MVCD review comments. 

 
 
2.4 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT (CD) & PERMIT SUBMITTAL SERVICES 

 
Based on the decisions by Client during the Schematic Design Phase - Section 
2.2, Architect shall complete a Construction Document package for the 
permitting, bidding and construction of the Project. It is anticipated that an initial 
plan review submittal to regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the project 
will be made within Sixty (60) calendar days of Client’s approval of the 
preliminary design. Included are the following services: 
 



 

 

Butte Co, MVCD – New Annex Building 
Architectural and Engineering Design Services Proposal 

Feb. 3, 2021 
Page 3 of 11 

 

2.4.1 Prepare architectural, structural, civil, mechanical, plumbing, and electrical 
drawings for permitting and construction.   

 
2.4.2 Prepare Project Manual and review County public bid package prior to 

public bid.    
A. Specifications to include Client approved products and method of project 

delivery. 
B. Specifications to correspond to the working drawings and the basis of 

design for the project. 
C. Specifications shall meet Title 24 requirements for bidding, construction 

and project closeout. 
D. Specifications shall include manufacturer’s warranties including term limits 

approved by the Client. 
E. Specifications shall be of a quality and detail necessary for public bid. 
F. A digital copy of the Project Manual shall be supplied to the Client, via MS 

Word format. 
 
2.4.3 Assist Client in its responsibility for filing documents required for the 

approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 
 
2.4.4 Resolve issues raised by agencies having jurisdiction over the Project. 
 
 
2.5 BIDDING & NEGOTIATION PHASE SERVICES 
 
2.5.1 Attend and assist County with Pre-Bid meeting and Site Walk. 
 
2.5.2 Respond to questions for prospective bidders and assist County with the 

preparation of addenda documents as required. 
 
2.5.3 Review bid documents, including Bid Tabulations forms, Sub lists and 

Notice of Contract with Client.  Architect to assist with the evaluation of 
potential contractor’s inclusion and exclusions, i.e. substitution requests, 
to show compliance with the requirements of the Project Manual. 

 
2.6 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION (CA) PHASE SERVICES  
 
Architect shall conduct the administration of the project through assistance and 

clarifications of the construction documents for the Contractor so that the 
execution of the project adheres to the approved construction documents.  
This phase will commence with the award of the Contract for Construction 
via a Notice to Proceed.  

 
2.6.1 The architect shall participate in a pre-construction meeting. 
 
2.6.2 The architect shall review all submittals according to the project manual. 
 



 

 

Butte Co, MVCD – New Annex Building 
Architectural and Engineering Design Services Proposal 

Feb. 3, 2021 
Page 4 of 11 

 

2.6.3 The architect shall participate in on-site meetings each week for duration 
of construction as detailed in initial project schedule supplied by contractor 
at beginning of construction. Site meetings/visits shall include; review of 
construction schedule and progress, review directive to Contractor, 
conduct photo documentation and produce meeting minutes and site visit 
reports to be distributed to the project team.  For extended work schedule 
see Additional Services. 

 
2.6.4 Provide telephone and electronic consultation to Client and Contractor. 
 
2.6.5 Issue Clarifications/ASI’s as required. 
 
2.6.6 Issue and obtain approval of Change Orders required due to unforeseen 

conditions or minor conflicts in the construction documents.  Change 
Orders due to Client requested revisions are Additional Services. 

 
2.6.7 Process all construction administration-related documents through 

NM&R’s “Alliance2Build” project management system. 
 
2.6.8 Prepare punch list. 
 
2.6.9 Project Closeout requirements. 
 

A. Assemble field documentation and photographs of the project, from 
site walks through construction. 

B. Review consultant field reports and related documentation and compile 
into binder as required. 

C. Incorporate RFI’s, ASI’s and minor Change Orders due to unforeseen 
conditions into AutoCAD Files. 

D. Conduct final site observation and prepare Punch List. 
E. Issue Notice of Substantial Completion. 
F. Review contractors and manufacturer’s warranties and related 

documents. 
G. Assemble items A-F in a three-ring binder and deliver to the Client 

upon project completion.  
 

SECTION 3 – ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
The following services are not included in our scope of services, but can be provided by 
NM&R as an additional service, billed in accordance with the attached hourly rate and 
reimbursement schedule.   
 
3.1 Preparation of Parcel Maps, easement plats and/or legal descriptions, American 

Land Title Association (ALTA) surveys and maps or flood studies. 
 

3.2 Payment of entitlement, review, development, permit, testing or inspection fees. 
 



 

 

Butte Co, MVCD – New Annex Building 
Architectural and Engineering Design Services Proposal 

Feb. 3, 2021 
Page 5 of 11 

 

3.3 Preparation of or payment for SWPPP—grading, field monitoring or storm water 
testing. 
 

3.4 Pre- or post-construction ALTA survey. 
 

3.5 Design of automatic fire suppression systems; a performance specification will be 
provided to accommodate bids by design-build subcontractors. 
 

3.6 Presentation drawings or renderings beyond simple 3-D sketch-up views used to 
communicate the design to the client and generate early design sketches. 
 

3.7 Work involving environmental impact reports or entitlements other than Planning 
or Administrative approval. 
 

3.8 Hydrology studies or accommodation of drainage from adjacent parcels. 
 

3.9 Preparation of plans, studies or documents relating to obtaining a National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit. 
 

3.10 Analysis or design of improvements or extensions of on or off-site utilities made 
necessary by the proposed project. 
 

3.11 Work required due to default of Contractors or serious deficiencies in the work of 
Contractors or construction subcontractors. 
 

3.12 Value engineering exploration. 
 

3.13 Interior design services beyond specification of basic finish materials. 
 

3.14 Preparation of or assistance with utility service requests or applications. 
 

3.15 Landscape and/or irrigation design services. 
 

3.16 Design of telephone, security or data systems. 
 

3.17 Additional scope Change Orders requested by the client. 
 

3.18 Preparation of Record Documents. 
 

3.19 Design and Documentation related to LEED certification. 
 
SECTION 4 – CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
4.1 Client shall, at its own expense, provide full information concerning its design 

objectives, constraints and criteria. Client shall furnish existing building plans and 
other data available as expeditiously as necessary for the orderly progress of 
Architect’s professional services. 



 

 

Butte Co, MVCD – New Annex Building 
Architectural and Engineering Design Services Proposal 

Feb. 3, 2021 
Page 6 of 11 

 

 
4.2 Architect shall be entitled to rely on accuracy of the information provided by 

Client. 
 
4.3 Client, with consultation from Architect, shall make application to all agencies 

having jurisdiction over the Project and shall pay all plan review fees, permit fees, 
application fees and development fees. 

 
4.4 Client shall designate an individual to act as the prime liaison with Architect and 

Architect’s consultants.  It assumed this individual will be Steven Gibson. Client 
shall furnish required information, review Architect’s work for conformity with 
Client’s objectives and render approvals and decisions as expeditiously as 
necessary for the orderly progress of Architect’s services. 

 
4.5 Client shall maintain a reasonable construction contingency for unknown 

conditions, minor defects or omissions in the design documents, and escalation 
in the price of materials and labor. 

 
 
SECTION 5 – HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
 
5.1 Both parties acknowledge that the Architect’s scope of services does not include 

any services related to the presence of any hazardous or toxic materials. In the 
event the Architect or any other party encounters any hazardous or toxic 
materials, or should it become known to the Architect that such materials may be 
present on or about the Project site or adjacent areas that may affect the 
performance of Architect’s services, the Architect may, at its option and without 
liability for consequential or other damages, suspend performance of its services 
under this Agreement until Client retains appropriate consultants or contractors to 
identify and abate or remove the hazardous or toxic materials and warrants that 
the Project site is in full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 
 
SECTION 6 – OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DOCUMENTS 
 
6.1 All original drawings, specifications and reproductions made for or in conjunction 

with this Project shall remain and exclusive property of Architect. Client shall 
have the right to use documents prepared by Architect in connection with 
continued or future work to the Project. Architect shall retain one (1) reproducible 
set of plans of the Project for the purpose of answering future questions raised by 
Client. If Client uses any drawings or other materials prepared by Architect for 
any purpose other than the construction of the Project, Architect shall not be 
liable to Client for any damages resulting from such use and Client shall 
indemnify and hold Architect harmless from any claim made by a third party for 
such use. 

 
 



 

 

Butte Co, MVCD – New Annex Building 
Architectural and Engineering Design Services Proposal 

Feb. 3, 2021 
Page 7 of 11 

 

SECTION 7 – PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
  
7.1 Architect agrees to maintain professional liability insurance in force throughout 

the duration of the project with a policy limit of $2 million per claim.  
 
7.2 It would be unfair for the Architect to be exposed to liability for its failure to 

perform a service not included in the scope of work described in this agreement. 
Client hereby waives any claim against Architect and agrees to defend, indemnify 
and hold Architect harmless from any claim or liability for injury or loss allegedly 
arising from Architect's failure to perform a service not included in the scope of 
the work described in this agreement, other than those solely resulting from the 
Architect’s negligent acts, errors and omissions. Client further agrees to 
compensate Architect for any time spent or expenses incurred by Architect in 
defense of any such claim, in accordance with Architect's prevailing fee schedule 
and expense reimbursement policy. 

 
7.3 The Architect agrees to indemnify and hold Client harmless from any claim or 

liability for injury or loss, other than those arising out of the Client’s sole 
negligence. 

 
7.4 It is understood and agreed that Architect has no constructive use of Client's site; 

has no control or authority over the means, methods, and sequences of 
construction; and therefore has no ongoing responsibility whatsoever for 
construction site safety, a responsibility that has been wholly vested in Client’s 
General Contractor. 

 
 
SECTION 8 – TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
8.1 Either party upon ten (10) days written notice may terminate this Agreement. 

Should this occur, Architect shall be compensated for all services performed to 
termination date, expenses directly attributable to termination, and Reimbursable 
Expenses due. 

 
 
SECTION 9 – BASIS OF COMPENSATION 
 
9.1 Compensation due the architect and its consultants shall be on a fixed fee of 

$72,500.00 (Seventy-Two Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars) exclusive of 
reimbursable expenses (per attached rate sheet). Charges for Services 
described above shall be billed monthly and in proportion to the services 
performed.  

 
9.2 Additional Services compensation shall be on an hourly rates and charges basis 

in accordance with Architect’s current Schedule of Hourly Rates and Charges per 
Attachment A, or per the consultant’s similar schedule.  All additional services will 
be approved in writing by client prior to proceeding. 



 

 

Butte Co, MVCD – New Annex Building 
Architectural and Engineering Design Services Proposal 

Feb. 3, 2021 
Page 8 of 11 

 

 
9.3 Client shall be responsible for payment of certain Reimbursable Expenses which 

include actual expenditures made by the Architect in the interest of the Project for 
the following: 

 
9.3.1 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the 

Project. 
9.3.2 Expense of any additional insurance coverage or limits, including 

professional liability insurance, requested by the Client in excess of that 
normally carried by Architect and Architect’s consultants. 

 
9.4 The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) provides that it is a violation of the 

ADA to design and construct a facility that does not meet the accessibility and 
usability requirements of the ADA.  The Client understands that the requirements 
of the ADA will be subject to various and possibly contradictory interpretations.  
The Architect therefore, will use its reasonable professional efforts and judgment 
to interpret applicable ADA requirements and other federal, state and local laws, 
rules, codes, ordinances and regulations as they apply to the Project.  The 
Architect, however, cannot and does not warrant or guarantee that the Client’s 
Project will comply with all interpretations of ADA requirements and/or 
requirements of other federal, state and local laws, rules, codes, ordinances and 
regulations as they apply to the Project. 

 
9.5 Client agrees to pay Architect within thirty (30) days after the date of billing. 

Payments due Architect and unpaid under this Agreement shall bear interest on 
the unpaid balance at a rate of 1% per month which is an annual percentage rate 
of 12%.  If payment is not received within thirty (30) days, Architect may, at his 
discretion, stop work until payment is received. Compensation for Architect's 
services shall not be contingent upon Client's ability to collect from others. 

 
9.6 The Client may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Client's convenience 

and without cause.  Upon receipt of written notice from the Client of such 
termination for the Client’s convenience, the Architect shall cease all work related 
to the project.  The Client agrees to compensate the Architect for all work 
performed to the date the Architect receives the written notice to terminate. 

 
 
SECTION 10 – DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
10.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this 

Agreement shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to the 
institution of legal or equitable proceedings by either party. If such matter relates 
to or is the subject of a lien arising out of the Architect's services, the Architect 
may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or 
filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by litigation. 

 



 

 

Butte Co, MVCD – New Annex Building 
Architectural and Engineering Design Services Proposal 

Feb. 3, 2021 
Page 9 of 11 

 

10.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other 
matters in question between them by mediation which, unless the parties 
mutually agree otherwise, shall be in accordance with the Construction Industry 
Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association currently in effect. 
Request for mediation shall be filed in writing with the other party to this 
Agreement and with the American Arbitration Association. Mediation shall 
proceed in advance of legal or equitable proceedings, which shall be stayed 
pending mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed 
for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. 

 
10.3 The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The 

mediation shall be held in the place where the Project is located, unless another 
location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall be 
enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

 
10.4 In the event of any litigation arising from or related to this agreement or the 

services provided under this agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover from the non-prevailing party all reasonable costs incurred, including 
staff time, court costs, attorneys’ fees, and all other related expenses in such 
litigation.  

 
 
SECTION 11 – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
11.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, except 

that it will be conclusively presumed that both parties had an equal part in the 
drafting of this Agreement. 

 
11.2 Client and Architect bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and 

legal representatives to the other party to this Agreement.  Neither Client nor 
Architect shall assign or otherwise transfer his interest in this Agreement without 
written consent of the other except that Architect reserves the right to retain duly 
licensed persons, firms or corporations as engineering or design consultants for 
portions of the Work herein provided for. 

 
11.3 If any one or more of the terms, provisions, or conditions of this Agreement are 

declared invalid, unenforceable, or void by a court of competent jurisdiction, none 
of the remaining terms, provisions, or conditions shall be affected and shall be 
valid and enforceable. 

 
11.4 Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement to the contrary, nothing 

herein contained shall be construed as: 
 

11.4.1 Constituting a guarantee, warranty or assurance, either express or 
implied, that the Architectural Services will yield or accomplish a perfect 
outcome for the Project; or 



 

 

Butte Co, MVCD – New Annex Building 
Architectural and Engineering Design Services Proposal 

Feb. 3, 2021 
Page 10 of 11 

 

11.4.2 Obligating Architect to exercise professional skill or judgment greater than 
that which can reasonably be expected from other architects under like 
circumstances; or 
 

11.4.3 An assumption by Architect of the liability of any other party. 
 
 
 
AGREED: 
 
Architect:     Authorization by Client:    
  

 
     
__________________________  _____________________________________ 
David A. Rogers, Principal Architect  Signature (Person signing represents they are  
CA Architect’s License No. C26604  Legally authorized to sign on behalf of entity) 
 
Nichols, Melburg & Rossetto  Butte County 
555 Main Street, Suite 300  
Chico, CA 95928    Title:____________________________ 
      Date:      _____ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Butte Co, MVCD – New Annex Building 
Architectural and Engineering Design Services Proposal 

Feb. 3, 2021 
Page 11 of 11 

 

 
 
 

Hourly Rate & Reimbursable Rate Schedule 
(Effective January 1, 2017) 

 
 

Principal Architect / Structural Engineer ..................................................... $235.00/hour 

Associate Principal Architect / Engineer ...................................................... $192.00/hour 

Senior Associate Architect / Engineer .......................................................... $180.00/hour 

Associate Architect / Engineer ....................................................................... $172.00/hour 

Structural Engineer ......................................................................................... $168.00/hour 

Architect, CASp ................................................................................................ $158.00/hour 

Senior Project Architect / Engineer .............................................................. $150.00/hour 

Project Architect / Engineer / Manager ........................................................ $145.00/hour 

Architect ........................................................................................................... $139.00/hour 

Medical Planner ............................................................................................... $133.00/hour 

Interior Designer ............................................................................................. $127.00/hour 

Project Technician I ......................................................................................... $122.00/hour 

Project Technician II  ....................................................................................... $116.00/hour 

Project Technician III ....................................................................................... $110.00/hour 

Administrative Analyst ..................................................................................... $80.00/hour 

Technical Assistant ............................................................................................ $69.00/hour 

Administrative ................................................................................................... $58.00/hour 
 

 

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE RATES: 
 

IN-HOUSE REPROGRAPHICS 
Prints  12x24, 15x21, 18x24 ............................................................... $1.75/each 

Prints 24x36  ...................................................................................... $2.50/each 

Prints 30x42  ...................................................................................... $3.50/each 

Copies  8-1/2x11....................................................................................  $.10/each 

Copies 8-1/2x14....................................................................................  $.15/each 

Copies 11x17 ......................................................................................... $.20/each 

Color Copies  8-1/2x11..................................................................................... $.50/each 

Color Copies 11x17 ......................................................................................... $.75/each 

Plots 24x36 Bond ...........................................................................  $4.00/each 

Plots 30x42 Bond ............................................................................ $5.00/each 

Color Plots 15x24 Bond .......................................................................... $12.50/each 

Color Plots   24x36 Bond .........................................................................  $20.00/each 

Color Plots  30x42 Bond .........................................................................  $25.00/each 

Presentation Board Materials .......................................................................... $50.00/each 

Scanning    12x24, 15x21, 18x24 ................................................................ .$.55/page 

Scanning 24x36 ....................................................................................... $1.15/page 

Scanning 30x42 ....................................................................................... $1.65/page 

Scanning 36x48 ....................................................................................... $2.15/page 
 

Printing by outside source ...........................................................  Actual Expense + 10% 
 

Alliance Project Management System: 

Server and Database use during Design .............................................. $40.00 per month 

Server and Database use during Construction ................................... $80.00 per month 
 

 

TRAVEL EXPENSES 
Mileage ................................................................................... Current IRS allowed amount 

Other Travel Related Expenses ..................................................... Actual Expense + 10% 
 

 

AGENCY FEES 
Approval and Plan Check Fees ...................................................... Actual Expense + 10% 

 

 

CONSULTANTS 
Consultant Billings  ......................................................................... Actual Expense + 10% 

Consultant Reimbursable Expenses ............................................. Actual Expense + 10% 
 

 

OTHER PROJECT RELATED ITEMS  .................................................... Actual Expense + 10% 





PROPOSED DESIGN SERVICES & UNDERSTANDING OF PROJECT SCOPE 

NorthStar has assembled a design team, including Surveying, Civil Engineering , Mechanical Engineering, 
Electrical Engineering; Landscape design, while self-performing Architectural and Structural design 
services.  The Architect and Architect’s consultants will begin by evaluating BCMVCD schematic floor plan 
provided to NorthStar.    

Architectural & Structural Design: 

We understand that the scope of work for this project will consist of the following: 

1. Programming: The new building to be added to the site shall include 1800 square foot 
freestanding building with the following spaces: 18’ x 20’ (approx.) Laboratory with and adjacent 
Lab Work Shop, accessed by a 10 foot wide roll-up door.  20’ x 30’ Board Room with a wet bar 
along one side of the room.  Adjacent to the Board Room shall be two single occupancy 
restrooms and 14’ x 20’ Manager’s Office served by a corridor.  On the south side of the new 
building shall be a covered Court Yard with an outside counter and sink. 

2. Schematic Design Phase: This phase will begin by performing a topographic survey of the 
existing site.  The result of the survey will be an accurate compilation of digital as-built drawings 
from which the remainder of the project will be based.  This information is used in conjunction 
with the programming data and client’s aesthetic preferences. Through the lens of the project 
program the Architect synthesizes all these components into a 3-D design concept.  We typically 
prepare digital study models, sketches and rough floor plans to communicate the design intent. 
This is often an iterative process, with limits outlined in the contract.  The Architect will also 
organize a meeting between the Client and the Architect’s MEP consultants with the goal to 
define the overall project performance goals.  The culmination will be a package provided to 
the Client for review and approval.  This analysis is compared to the overall budget; adjustments 
to the scope, design or budget will be addressed at this juncture.  Our goal with this approach 
is to purposefully assess and align project expectations between the Client and design team to 
preserve and prioritize the design intent in relation to the budgetary aim.   

3. Design Development Phase: Based on the refined functional plan and flow established through 
schematic design, we begin developing the technical information needed to describe the look 
and feel.  This phase also sees the other building systems take shape.  The project performance 
goals established during schematic design by the Client, Architect, and Architect’s MEP 
consultants are then expanded upon by the individual consultants and integrated into the 
overall design.  Once the full design team has refined and coordinated the building concept with 
required systems, the Architect will provide a package to the Client for review and approval.  
The Architect and his team of consultant shall provide an opinion of construction cost for review 
and approval by the Owner. 

4. Construction Documents Phase: By this point, the project direction is clear, and the client 
engagement has steadily eased.  The lion’s share of design work has been agreed upon.  The 
primary goal of this phase is to refine the technical drawings and specifications needed for 
Agency review, bidding, and construction clarity.  Based on review and approval by the Client, 
the full package of construction documents, calculations and reports will be submitted to the 
Agency having Jurisdiction for plan check and comment. 

5. Agency Approval and Procurement: Once initial plan check comments are received; the design 
team will evaluate potential project impacts and determine a course of action for revision.  
When the design team has satisfactorily addressed all comment and the Agency having 
Jurisdiction has deemed the review complete, they will make available the building permit upon 



receipt of required impact fees.  The Architect will then assist the Client with procurement of a 
construction contract via competitive bid. 

6. Construction Phase Services:  The Architect and the Architect’s Design Consultants play an 
active role during construction.  Their main charge is to advocate for the Client and help 
preserve the integrity of the design by actively answering contractor questions, issuing 
clarification where needed and reviewing material submittals for general conformance with the 
contract documents.  Owner, Architect and Contractor (OAC) Site meetings are anticipated 
approximately every other week throughout the construction period. 

Civil Engineering: 

1. Based on the Topographic Survey, determine the new finish floor elevation, provide drainage from 
new roof and revised site paving around new and existing buildings.  Locate connection points for 
utilities. 

 

Mechanical & Plumbing Design: 

We understand that the scope of work for this project will consist of the following: 

1. Schematic Design Phase: Conduct one (1) site visit to further evaluate and document existing 
conditions. Develop AutoCAD base plans based on site visit findings. 

2. Construction Documents Phase: Conduct one (1) site visit, prepare construction drawings and 
technical specifications for the systems and components described above. Submit drawings to the 
County of Butte and incorporate all corrections required into the working drawings. 

3. Construction Phase Services: Review shop drawings and submittal data for general compliance 
with mechanical and plumbing contract documents. Respond to RFIs and submittals. Prepare 
change order documents where required to meet existing job conditions. Provide two (2) site 
visits during the course of construction. 
 

The work related to the mechanical and plumbing systems will be as follows: 
 

Mechanical Systems 
• Design new HVAC systems to meet functional requirements. 
• New exhaust fans for restrooms. 
• Title 24 compliance forms for building envelope and mechanical systems. 

 
Plumbing Systems 

• Provide new restroom plumbing fixtures. 
• Provide new sinks for Lab, Board Room and Outdoor Court Yard. 
• New condensate piping for new rooftop units. 

 

Electrical 

We understand that the scope of work for this project will consist of the following: 



1. Schematic Design Phase: Conduct one (1) site visit to further evaluate and document existing 
conditions.  It is anticipated that a new electrical service will be brought to the new building.  The 
existing Admin Building existing service will be back fed from the new service. 

2. Design Development Phase:  Submit requests for electrical meter recordings to be provided by 
Owner.  Provide an updated site plan of existing and proposed electrical and low voltage 
equipment.  Provide a proposed lighting layout indicating:  Types of luminaires, lamp source, and 
quantity of lamps luminaire; Luminaires on emergency power source; Identify interior and 
exterior luminaire locations on plans.  Provide a proposed layout of all electrical and low voltage 
system devices.  Provide updated one-line diagram.  Provide updated electrical equipment and 
low voltage room layouts.  Anticipate one (1) design meeting with the design team and Owner’s 
representative.  Provide design development drawings in PDF format. 

3. Construction Documents Phase:   Finalize new electrical plans, indicating complete:  Luminaire 
layout with switching; Title 24 documentation; Power plan complete and coordinated with all 
equipment and emergency systems; Electrical circuiting complete; Coordination of electrical 
equipment closets; Coordination of all low voltage devices; Coordination with Mechanical and 
Plumbing Engineers.  Finalize schedules and legends.  Finalize electrical site and lighting plans.  
Finalize one-line diagrams.  Finalize electrical load calculations and equipment sizing.  Finalize 
specifications.  Complete all required forms for agency review submittal.  Anticipate one (1) design 
meeting with the design team and Owner’s representative.  Submit two (2) sets of 100% 
construction document drawings.  Respond to plan review comments.  Coordinate with design 
team for additional comments.  Assist in the bidding by being available to answer questions to 
clarify the drawings and specifications.  Prepare addendums for clarification of drawings and 
specifications. 

4. Construction Phase Services: Review of electrical submittals and shop drawings for general 
compliance with electrical contract documents. Respond to electrical contractor’s request for 
information. Prepare change order documents where required to meet existing job conditions. 
Perform one (1) final inspection and prepare an electrical site observation report. 

 
 

The work related to the electrical systems will be as follows: 
 
Electrical Systems 

• Site lighting and controls. 
• Interior lighting and controls. 
• Receptacle layout and circuiting. 
• Power to mechanical and plumbing equipment. 
• Power to equipment furnished by others. 
• Title 24 Compliance (NRCC) forms. 
• Empty conduit and junction boxes for data system. 



COST PROPOSAL  
 

NORTHSTAR  

ARCHITECTURAL/STRUCTURAL DESIGN  

 Schematic Design, Design Development,         
Construction Documents, Agency Approval, 
Bidding, Construction Phase Services         (Fixed Fee) $95,600.00 

 
 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY 

Field Crew, Office reduction, review_______________________________Fixed Fee______$4,090.00 
 CIVIL ENGINEERING____________________________________________Fixed Fee______$5,000.00 
 

NORTHSTAR DESIGN CONSULTANTS 

MECHANICAL/PLUMBING DESIGN  

 Schematic Design, Design Development,         
Construction Documents, Agency Approval, 
Bidding, Construction Phase Services         (Fixed Fee) $  9,120.00 

 
ELECTRICAL DESIGN 

 Schematic Design, Design Development,         
Construction Documents, Agency Approval, 
Bidding, Construction Phase Services         (Fixed Fee) $  6,843.00 
 

LANDSCAPE DESIGN 
 
 Planting design, irrigation design combined into Construction Documents    (Fixed Fee)        $ 4,600.00 

 
 
 

 
TOTAL PROPOSED DESIGN FEE           (Fixed Fee) $125,253.00 

 

 
 

CHANGE ORDERS/ ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

 For services beyond the scope outlined, upon Client approval, design changes may be invoiced as 
time & expense per the attached Standard Rate Schedule, or as defined in a mutually agreed upon 
contract addendum.   



 

Page 1 of 2  Consultant:  __________  Client:  __________   

   

2571 California Park Drive, Ste. 210 Chico, CA 95928  (530) 892-1100 
 

                             CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

                     

CLIENT:  Butte County Mosquito & Vector Control District DATE: March 4, 2021 

     5117 Larkin Road   

     Oroville, CA 95965  
 

Project Description: Office addition at 5117 Larkin Road, Oroville, CA 95965  

 

Included Services:  Streamline will provide construction documents for the building 

only.  They will provide the design and structural engineering for the new office building 
addition of 1,800 square feet as requested by the owner and as required by the building 

dept.  The building design will be as required by the 2019 California Building Code. The 

project will be a design build with Conroy Construction, Inc. of Chico.  The building will 

be of wood framed or metal framed construction.  The owner will contract directly with 

Conroy Construction for their scope of work. The scope of work includes progress 

inspections as requested by the owner.  
 

Excluded Services:  The scope of work does not include providing a site plan, parking 

lot analysis, a soils report, property survey, grading plan, stormwater plan, sewer 

design, electrical plan, plumbing plan, or mechanical plan. Does not include structural 

engineering for a metal building as this will be provided by the builindg manufacturer.  
The scope does not include submitting plans to the building department.  

 

Cost of Services:  

Design and Construction Drawings:      $11,625.00  Fixed Fee 

Structural Engineering of building only:       $8,450.00  Fixed Fee 

Title 24 Energy Calculations:         $525.00 Fixed Fee 
Progress Inspections as requested by the owner:          $125.00  Per Hour 

Retainer to be returned with contract              ($5,000.00) 

Reproductions 24” x 36”:                                 $3.50/sheet  

Total Balance due upon completion:  $15,600.00 + Retainer + Reproduction costs 
        

Terms and Conditions: 
 
1.  The Client/contractor is responsible for maintaining the job site in a safe condition and for the methods of 
construction.  The consultant will not exert any control over construction operations.  The presence of the 
consultant on site does not excuse the contractor from any defects discovered in his work.  The client is 

responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and inspections required by the building department for this 
project.   If the client/owner does not obtain a permit and a certificate of occupancy from the appropriate 
government agencies for this project, then the consultant shall be released from all liability related to this 
project. 

2. Consultant reserves ownership of all drawings produced under this Agreement.  The same shall not be 
assigned to a third party without the written consent of the Consultant.  This Agreement provides the Owner 
with the use of the drawings for construction of one structure.   

3.  Owner/Contractor shall verify final plans including all details and dimensions, as well as the conditions of 
the job before commencement of the Work and while under construction.  If the Owner/Contractor becomes 
aware of any fault or defect with the above, or with the Construction Documents, prompt written notice shall 
be given to the Consultant in order to remedy discrepancies.  It is customary to omit certain details well 

within the common knowledge of the Contractor or standard building practices.  If a detail is omitted from 
Construction Documents for which the Contractor needs further explanation, the Contractor should 
determine the solution with Consultant before construction.  Contractor assumes full responsibility for 



 

Page 2 of 2    

   

2571 California Park Drive, Ste. 210 Chico, CA 95928  (530) 892-1100 

 

executing all details of construction if not on Documents in order to fulfill his contract for construction.  

Owner/Contractor shall verify placement of structure and report any discrepancies to Consultant in writing 
before commencement of Work.  Consultant shall assume no responsibility or liability for unauthorized 
deviation from drawings/documents provided to Owner.  

4.  Owner to provide all soils testing as necessary and shall be entirely responsible for the discovery, removal 
of or exposure of persons to hazardous materials at the Project site.  Changes in Building or Zoning Codes 
made after Agreement date may require a change in scope of work with additional cost to be reimbursable to 
Consultant.  Consultant will notify the Client of any changes of this nature.  

5.  Consultant must rely wholly on accuracy of all site information and legal descriptions as forwarded by 
Owner including but not limited to: metes and bounds, easements/setbacks, special zoning, subdivision 
regulations, soils and ground conditions with consultant’s report, topographical maps showing utilities.  

6.  Dimensions and details my change due to field conditions, construction techniques and other variables 
that shall not be charged against Consultant’s drawings for omissions or error.  All Work submitted by 

Consultant is to be properly designed for electrical, heating, ventilation and air conditioning by Owner’s 
Contractor under separate contract.   

7.  Balance is due and payable upon presentation of invoice.  Deferred payment is not implied.  Interest on 
unpaid balance will accrue at the rate of 18% per year.  It is the Consultant’s policy to file Notice to Owner 
or lien according to applicable state mechanic’s lien laws if timely payment is not made or Owner violates 

contract terms.  Owner agrees to pay Consultant’s fee regardless of the results of government approvals, 
whether or not the project receives financing, or is completed.  

8.  In order to provide the high quality of service at the competitive fees quoted herein, the Consultant’s total 
aggregate liability for all claims arising out of or related to the Project shall not exceed 50% of the Net 
compensation received for the Project.  Jurisdiction of legal claims made against any party of this 
Agreement to be in Butte County.  Any default or breach in this Agreement made by the Owner/Client or the 

Consultant shall allow the other party to pursue legal recourse and recovery of damages, costs and legal fees 
not to exceed $1,000.00.  Mediation will be the first course of resolving contract disputes excluding 
collection of unpaid fees and costs.  

9.  Retainer is not refundable if project is terminated after this contract is signed unless negligence is proven 

against Consultant.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon not less than seven days’ 

written notice should the other party fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement through no fault of the party initiating the termination.  In the event that any items of this 
contract shall be held unenforceable or void, the entire contract shall not be void or unenforceable and be 
valid and enforceable.  Owner by his or her signature indicates he/she has read and understands entire 
Agreement. 

10.  The services provided by the consultant under this contract will be consistent with the level of care and 
skill provided by other local consultants during the present time the work is performed.  Client understands 
that there are risks associated with construction and understands that the consultant is not providing a 
warranty of any kind.  The Client understands that the laws regarding ADA are constantly changing and that 

they are sometimes vague and not uniformly enforced.  The consultant will make every attempt to satisfy 
what he believes to be the current interpretation of the ADA requirements.  The client understands that the 
consultant does not make any warranty that his design is in full compliance with the ADA requirements.   

Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between Owner and 

Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations oral or written.   

 

Consultant:     Client: 
 
                                      
Jeff Richelieu, RCE 53590    Date  Name        Date 
President, Streamline Engineering   Title:                       



4/8/2021 Received 1%
 Received Received Received Received 3/31/2021 Apr-June 2021 County/ District Proposed 

Income 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 Projections Projections 2021/2022

4110 ꞏ Current Secured Property Taxes 1,997,352$  2,107,829$  2,070,675$  2,050,276$  1,196,520$  981,537$     2,178,057$          2,199,837$        

4111 ꞏ Current Unsecured 134,183$     131,437$     143,460$     150,676$     147,936$     0$                147,936$             149,415$           

4113 ꞏ Prior Unsecured 3,091$         4,666$         3,796$         4,164$         3,245$         -$                 3,245$                 3,277$               

4114ꞏ Supplemental Current Secured 34,079$       38,841$       37,022$       39,180$       22,870$       -$                 22,870$               25,000$             

4116 ꞏ  RDA Residual 227,190$     239,165$     331,302$     368,580$     218,262$     81,738$       300,000$             300,000$           **

4117 ꞏ RDA Pass-Thru 475,350$     497,751$     540,056$     604,128$     320,913$     299,241$     620,154$             600,000$           

4130 ꞏ Miscellaneous Taxes 6,565$         9,296$         9,094$         4,497$         5,483$         517$            6,000$                 6,832$               

4410 ꞏ Interest Income 25,854$       36,991$       58,610$       72,592$       26,860$       13,140$       40,000$               38,000$             **

4501 ꞏ State Back Fill Secured -$                 -$                 140,296$     170,693$     177,067$     -$                 177,067$             -$                       

4502 ꞏ State Back Fill Unsecured -$                 -$                 875$            1,858$         2,320$         -$                 2,320$                 -$                       

4516 ꞏ HOPTR - Homeowner's Exemption 36,989$       36,803$       36,582$       35,033$       16,858$       20,118$       36,976$               35,000$             

4613 ꞏ Benefit Assessment 744,730$     748,525$     848,762$     741,375$     419,968$     361,323$     781,292$             862,000$           

4620 ꞏ Special Household  Assessments 3,035$         2,943$         2,872$         2,871$         1,696$         804$            2,500$                 2,500$               **

4621 ꞏ Benefit Assessment Hamilton City 6,114$         6,139$         6,857$         6,929$         4,175$         2,325$         6,500$                 6,500$               

4625 ꞏ Charges for Current Services 237,367$     325,517$     411,996$     415,907$     327,060$     120,000$     447,060$             420,000$            

4730 ꞏ Miscellaneous Revenues 21,326$       45,776$       65,340$       121,228$     215,059$     -$                 215,059$             20,000$             **
4736 ꞏ Grants Other Agencies -$                 -$                 -$                 310,434$     79,600$       -$                 79,600$               -$                       **

Total Income 3,953,224$  4,231,679$  4,707,594$  5,100,420$  3,185,891$  1,880,743$  5,066,635$          4,668,362$        
H.C. 9,000.00$          

Benefit Assessment Projection 4,659,362$        
No County projections
** Budget same as last year

Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District
Proposed Revenue Budget

Combined
Fiscal Year 2021-2022

OPTION #1 Increase Benefit Assesment to the rate of $11.86



 
OPTION #1 with increase Final Final Final Final Final Proposed

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget 
 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022
SALARIES & BENEFITS
Salaries  1,361,000$     1,427,432$     1,418,500       1,468,000$     1,480,196$     1,535,314$     
Workers Compensation 60,000$          60,000$          70,000            70,000$          70,000$          70,000$          
FICA & U I 117,000$        125,000$        127,000          124,000$        127,429$        130,471$        
Health Insurance 307,000$        350,000$        353,000          339,000$        342,618$        384,365$        
Health Insurance - Retired 4,800$            -$                -                  -$                -$                -$                
PERS 293,000$        323,000$        340,000          374,000$        407,936$        466,437$        
PERS- ADP -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                350,000.00$   
PERS- 115 Trust -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                150,000.00$   

TOTAL 2,142,800$     2,285,432$     2,308,500       2,375,000$     2,428,179$     3,086,587$     

SERVICES & SUPPLIES
Gas & Oil 95,000$          95,000$          100,000$        71,000$          110,000$        110,000$        
Repairs & Parts-Airplane 20,000$          20,000$          25,000$          25,000$          30,000$          55,000$          
Repairs & Parts  30,000$          30,000$          35,000$          35,000$          40,000$          50,000$          
Office Supplies 15,000$          15,000$          15,000$          20,000$          20,000$          25,000$          
Education & Publicity 40,000$          45,000$          50,000$          50,000$          60,000$          80,000$          
Insecticides 613,432$        593,000$        824,500$        721,000$        842,000$        900,000$        
Expendable Equipment 50,000$          40,000$          40,000$          20,000$          40,000$          50,000$          
Communications 30,000$          40,000$          45,000$          30,000$          35,000$          40,000$          
Travel 15,000$          15,000$          15,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          
Utilities 30,000$          45,000$          45,000$          25,000$          35,000$          40,000$          
Rent 5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            
Special Services 100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        137,000$        140,000$        160,000$        
Trustee Allowance 13,200$          13,200$          13,200$          13,200$          13,200$          13,200$          
General Insurance 80,000$          90,000$          85,000$          97,000$          120,000$        130,000$        
Employee Trng & Dues 15,000$          15,000$          15,000$          10,000$          15,000$          15,000$          
District Fees and Permits 30,000$          30,000$          33,000$          33,000$          35,000$          40,000$          
Miscellaneous 14,000$          14,000$          15,000$          12,500$          15,000$          15,000$          
Research Supplies 57,500$          45,000$          50,000$          40,000$          50,000$          61,500$          
Alternate Technology 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Special Discretionary 12,500$          13,000$          15,000$          8,500$            20,000$          20,000$          
Gambusia 10,000$          13,000$          13,000$          10,000$          15,000$          15,000$          

TOTAL 1,276,632$     1,277,200$     1,539,700$     1,374,200$     1,651,200$     1,835,700$     
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Bldg & Improvements 40,000$          153,000$        20,000$          45,000$          30,000$          60,000$          
Vehicles 140,000$        110,000$        105,000$        312,000$        230,000$        135,000$        
Spray Equipment 23,000$          45,000$          100,000$        36,000$          18,398$          20,000$          
Aircraft 71,000$          5,000$            10,000$          5,000$            8,000$            25,000$          
Office Equipment 1,000$            1,000$            5,000$            1,000$            6,000$            1,000$            
Laboratory Equipment 1,000$            7,000$            1,000$            1,000$            7,962$            1,000$            
Shop Equipment 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            3,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Education & Publicity 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Miscellaneous 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Communications 221,000$        129,650$        1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            

TOTAL 500,000$        453,650$        245,000$        406,000$        304,360$        246,000$        

          Grand Total 3,919,432$     4,016,282$     4,093,200$     4,155,200$     4,383,739$     5,168,287$     

Appropriation for Contingencies 897,983$        633,908$        1,023,300$     912,550$        1,089,845$     1,167,072$     
Restricted - UST Fund 5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            
Committed - Accumulated Capital O 800,000$        1,300,000$     1,700,000$     1,900,000$     2,000,000$     1,500,000$     
Committed - Aircraft Engine Fund 400,000$        450,000$        500,000$        500,000$        580,000$        580,000$        
Assigned - Research Reserve 20,000$          30,000$          30,000$          30,000$          100,000$        100,000$        
Assigned - Vector Borne Disease E 205,000$        255,000$        257,500$        257,500$        357,500$        350,000$        
General Reserve 615,000$        620,000$        160,000$        150,000$        200,000$        200,000$        

TOTAL 2,942,983$     3,293,908$     3,675,800$     3,755,050$     4,332,345$     3,902,072$     

                Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District 
Proposed Budget

Combined 
Fiscal Year 2021/2022



 
OPTION #1 with increase Final Final Final Final Final Proposed

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget 
 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022
SALARIES & BENEFITS
Salaries  1,361,000$       1,427,432$       1,418,500         1,468,000$     1,480,196$     1,529,814$     
Workers Compensation 60,000$            60,000$            70,000               70,000$          70,000$          70,000$          
FICA & U I 117,000$          125,000$          127,000            124,000$        127,429$        130,471$        
Health Insurance 307,000$          350,000$          353,000            339,000$        342,618$        384,365$        
Health Insurance - Retired 4,800$               ‐$                   ‐                     -$                -$                -$                
PERS 293,000$          323,000$          340,000            374,000$        407,936$        466,437$        
PERS- ADP ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                   -$                -$                350,000.00$   
PERS- 115 Trust -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                150,000.00$   

TOTAL 2,142,800$       2,285,432$       2,308,500         2,375,000$     2,428,179$     3,081,087$     

SERVICES & SUPPLIES
Gas & Oil 100,000$          95,000$            95,000$            100,000$        90,000$          110,000$        
Repairs & Parts-Airplane 20,000$            20,000$            20,000$            25,000$          25,000$          55,000$          
Repairs & Parts  30,000$            30,000$            30,000$            35,000$          35,000$          50,000$          
Office Supplies 15,000$            15,000$            15,000$            15,000$          15,000$          25,000$          
Education & Publicity 30,000$            40,000$            45,000$            50,000$          50,000$          80,000$          
Insecticides 630,000$          610,432$          590,000$          821,500$        696,500$        896,500$        
Expendable Equipment 50,000$            50,000$            40,000$            40,000$          20,000$          50,000$          
Communications 20,000$            30,000$            40,000$            45,000$          30,000$          40,000$          
Travel 15,000$            15,000$            15,000$            15,000$          10,000$          10,000$          
Utilities 25,000$            30,000$            45,000$            45,000$          25,000$          40,000$          
Rent 5,000$               5,000$               5,000$               5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            
Special Services 80,000$            100,000$          100,000$          100,000$        100,000$        160,000$        
Trustee Allowance 13,200$            13,200$            13,200$            13,200$          13,200$          13,200$          
General Insurance 75,000$            80,000$            90,000$            85,000$          85,000$          130,000$        
Employee Trng & Dues 10,000$            15,000$            15,000$            15,000$          10,000$          15,000$          
District Fees and Permits 30,000$            30,000$            30,000$            33,000$          33,000$          40,000$          
Miscellaneous 12,000$            14,000$            14,000$            15,000$          8,500$            15,000$          
Research Supplies 45,000$            57,500$            45,000$            50,000$          40,000$          61,500$          
Alternate Technology 1,000$               1,000$               1,000$               1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Special Discretionary 10,000$            12,500$            13,000$            15,000$          8,500$            20,000$          
Gambusia 5,000$               10,000$            13,000$            13,000$          10,000$          15,000$          

TOTAL 1,221,200$     1,273,632$     1,274,200$       1,536,700$     1,310,700$     1,832,200$     
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Bldg & Improvements 50,000$          40,000$          153,000$          20,000$          45,000$          60,000$          
Vehicles 95,000$          140,000$        110,000$          105,000$        114,000$        135,000$        
Spray Equipment 25,000$          23,000$          45,000$            100,000$        36,000$          20,000$          
Aircraft 5,000$            71,000$          5,000$               10,000$          5,000$            25,000$          
Office Equipment 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$               5,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Laboratory Equipment 1,000$            1,000$            7,000$               1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Shop Equipment 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$               1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Education & Publicity 3,000$            1,000$            1,000$               1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Miscellaneous 5,000$            1,000$            1,000$               1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Communications 1,000$            221,000$        129,650$          1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            

TOTAL 187,000$        500,000$        453,650$          245,000$        206,000$        246,000$        

          Grand Total 3,551,000$     4,059,064$     4,036,350$     4,156,700$     3,944,879$     5,159,287$     

Appropriation for Contingencies 850,025$        895,983$        631,800$        1,021,050$     945,300$        1,164,822$     
Restricted - UST Fund 5,000$               5,000$               5,000$               5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            
Committed - Accumulated Capital O 550,000$          550,000$          550,000$          800,000$        1,900,000$     1,500,000$     
Committed - Aircraft Engine Fund 350,000$          350,000$          350,000$          400,000$        500,000$        580,000$        
Assigned - Research Reserve 20,000$            20,000$            20,000$            20,000$          30,000$          100,000$        
Assigned - Vector Borne Disease E 150,000$          150,000$          150,000$          200,000$        250,000$        342,500$        
General Reserve 160,000$          160,000$          360,000$          610,000$        150,000$        200,000$        

TOTAL 2,085,025$     2,130,983$     2,066,800$     3,056,050$     3,780,300$     3,892,322$     

                Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District 
Proposed Budget

Fund - 2270
Fiscal Year 2021/2022



Final Final Final Final Final
 Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Proposed

2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022

Salaries & Benefits 5,000$     5,000$     5,500$       5,500$     5,500$     5,500$     
Services & Supplies 3,000$     3,432$     3,500$       3,500$     3,500$     3,500$     

8,000$     8,432$     9,000$       9,000$     9,000$     9,000$     

Appropriation for Contingency 2,000$     2,108$     2,250$       2,250$     2,250$     2,250$     
Assigned Vector Borne Disease 5,000$     5,000$     7,500$       7,500$     7,500$     7,500$     
General Reserve -$         -$         -$           -$         -$         -$         

Hamilton City Benefit Assessment Area
Proposed Budget

Fiscal Year 2021/2022
Fund - 2272



4/8/2021 Received 1%
 Received Received Received Received 3/31/2021 Apr-June 2021 County/ District Proposed 

Income 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 Projections Projections 2021/2022

4110 ꞏ Current Secured Property Taxes 1,997,352$  2,107,829$  2,070,675$  2,050,276$  1,196,520$  981,537$     2,178,057$          2,199,837$        

4111 ꞏ Current Unsecured 134,183$     131,437$     143,460$     150,676$     147,936$     0$                147,936$             149,415$           

4113 ꞏ Prior Unsecured 3,091$         4,666$         3,796$         4,164$         3,245$         -$                 3,245$                 3,277$               

4114ꞏ Supplemental Current Secured 34,079$       38,841$       37,022$       39,180$       22,870$       -$                 22,870$               25,000$             

4116 ꞏ  RDA Residual 227,190$     239,165$     331,302$     368,580$     218,262$     81,738$       300,000$             300,000$           **

4117 ꞏ RDA Pass-Thru 475,350$     497,751$     540,056$     604,128$     320,913$     299,241$     620,154$             600,000$           

4130 ꞏ Miscellaneous Taxes 6,565$         9,296$         9,094$         4,497$         5,483$         517$            6,000$                 6,832$               

4410 ꞏ Interest Income 25,854$       36,991$       58,610$       72,592$       26,860$       13,140$       40,000$               38,000$             **

4501 ꞏ State Back Fill Secured -$                 -$                 140,296$     170,693$     177,067$     -$                 177,067$             -$                       

4502 ꞏ State Back Fill Unsecured -$                 -$                 875$            1,858$         2,320$         -$                 2,320$                 -$                       

4516 ꞏ HOPTR - Homeowner's Exemption 36,989$       36,803$       36,582$       35,033$       16,858$       20,118$       36,976$               35,000$             

4613 ꞏ Benefit Assessment 744,730$     748,525$     848,762$     741,375$     419,968$     361,323$     781,292$             790,000$           

4620 ꞏ Special Household  Assessments 3,035$         2,943$         2,872$         2,871$         1,696$         804$            2,500$                 2,500$               **

4621 ꞏ Benefit Assessment Hamilton City 6,114$         6,139$         6,857$         6,929$         4,175$         2,325$         6,500$                 6,500$               

4625 ꞏ Charges for Current Services 237,367$     325,517$     411,996$     415,907$     327,060$     120,000$     447,060$             420,000$            

4730 ꞏ Miscellaneous Revenues 21,326$       45,776$       65,340$       121,228$     215,059$     -$                 215,059$             20,000$             **
4736 ꞏ Grants Other Agencies -$                 -$                 -$                 310,434$     79,600$       -$                 79,600$               -$                       **

Total Income 3,953,224$  4,231,679$  4,707,594$  5,100,420$  3,185,891$  1,880,743$  5,066,635$          4,596,362$        
H.C. 9,000.00$          

Benefit Assessment Projection 4,587,362$        
No County projections
** Budget same as last year

Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District
Proposed Revenue Budget

Combined
Fiscal Year 2021-2022

OPTION #2 NO Increase, current rate of $10.87



 
OPTION #2 NO increase Final Final Final Final Final Proposed

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget 
 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022
SALARIES & BENEFITS
Salaries  1,361,000$     1,427,432$     1,418,500       1,468,000$     1,480,196$     1,535,314$     
Workers Compensation 60,000$          60,000$          70,000            70,000$          70,000$          70,000$          
FICA & U I 117,000$        125,000$        127,000          124,000$        127,429$        130,471$        
Health Insurance 307,000$        350,000$        353,000          339,000$        342,618$        384,365$        
Health Insurance - Retired 4,800$            -$                -                  -$                -$                -$                
PERS 293,000$        323,000$        340,000          374,000$        407,936$        466,437$        
PERS- ADP -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                350,000.00$   
PERS- 115 Trust -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                150,000.00$   

TOTAL 2,142,800$     2,285,432$     2,308,500       2,375,000$     2,428,179$     3,086,587$     

SERVICES & SUPPLIES
Gas & Oil 95,000$          95,000$          100,000$        71,000$          110,000$        110,000$        
Repairs & Parts-Airplane 20,000$          20,000$          25,000$          25,000$          30,000$          40,500$          
Repairs & Parts  30,000$          30,000$          35,000$          35,000$          40,000$          40,000$          
Office Supplies 15,000$          15,000$          15,000$          20,000$          20,000$          20,000$          
Education & Publicity 40,000$          45,000$          50,000$          50,000$          60,000$          75,000$          
Insecticides 613,432$        593,000$        824,500$        721,000$        842,000$        900,000$        
Expendable Equipment 50,000$          40,000$          40,000$          20,000$          40,000$          40,000$          
Communications 30,000$          40,000$          45,000$          30,000$          35,000$          35,000$          
Travel 15,000$          15,000$          15,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          
Utilities 30,000$          45,000$          45,000$          25,000$          35,000$          40,000$          
Rent 5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            
Special Services 100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        137,000$        140,000$        150,000$        
Trustee Allowance 13,200$          13,200$          13,200$          13,200$          13,200$          13,200$          
General Insurance 80,000$          90,000$          85,000$          97,000$          120,000$        135,000$        
Employee Trng & Dues 15,000$          15,000$          15,000$          10,000$          15,000$          15,000$          
District Fees and Permits 30,000$          30,000$          33,000$          33,000$          35,000$          40,000$          
Miscellaneous 14,000$          14,000$          15,000$          12,500$          15,000$          15,000$          
Research Supplies 57,500$          45,000$          50,000$          40,000$          50,000$          60,000$          
Alternate Technology 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Special Discretionary 12,500$          13,000$          15,000$          8,500$            20,000$          20,000$          
Gambusia 10,000$          13,000$          13,000$          10,000$          15,000$          15,000$          

TOTAL 1,276,632$     1,277,200$     1,539,700$     1,374,200$     1,651,200$     1,779,700$     
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Bldg & Improvements 40,000$          153,000$        20,000$          45,000$          30,000$          40,000$          
Vehicles 140,000$        110,000$        105,000$        312,000$        230,000$        135,000$        
Spray Equipment 23,000$          45,000$          100,000$        36,000$          18,398$          20,000$          
Aircraft 71,000$          5,000$            10,000$          5,000$            8,000$            25,000$          
Office Equipment 1,000$            1,000$            5,000$            1,000$            6,000$            2,000$            
Laboratory Equipment 1,000$            7,000$            1,000$            1,000$            7,962$            2,000$            
Shop Equipment 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            3,000$            1,000$            2,000$            
Education & Publicity 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            2,000$            
Miscellaneous 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Communications 221,000$        129,650$        1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            

TOTAL 500,000$        453,650$        245,000$        406,000$        304,360$        230,000$        

          Grand Total 3,919,432$     4,016,282$     4,093,200$     4,155,200$     4,383,739$     5,096,287$     

Appropriation for Contingencies 897,983$        633,908$        1,023,300$     912,550$        1,089,845$     1,149,072$     
Restricted - UST Fund 5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            
Committed - Accumulated Capital O 800,000$        1,300,000$     1,700,000$     1,900,000$     2,000,000$     1,500,000$     
Committed - Aircraft Engine Fund 400,000$        450,000$        500,000$        500,000$        580,000$        580,000$        
Assigned - Research Reserve 20,000$          30,000$          30,000$          30,000$          100,000$        100,000$        
Assigned - Vector Borne Disease E 205,000$        255,000$        257,500$        257,500$        357,500$        350,000$        
General Reserve 615,000$        620,000$        160,000$        150,000$        200,000$        200,000$        

TOTAL 2,942,983$     3,293,908$     3,675,800$     3,755,050$     4,332,345$     3,884,072$     

                Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District 
Proposed Budget

Fiscal Year 2021/2022
Combined 



 
OPTION #2 NO increase Final Final Final Final Final Proposed

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget 
 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022
SALARIES & BENEFITS
Salaries  1,361,000$       1,427,432$       1,418,500         1,468,000$     1,480,196$     1,529,814$     
Workers Compensation 60,000$            60,000$            70,000               70,000$          70,000$          70,000$          
FICA & U I 117,000$          125,000$          127,000            124,000$        127,429$        130,471$        
Health Insurance 307,000$          350,000$          353,000            339,000$        342,618$        384,365$        
Health Insurance - Retired 4,800$               ‐$                   ‐                     -$                -$                -$                
PERS 293,000$          323,000$          340,000            374,000$        407,936$        466,437$        
PERS- ADP ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                   -$                -$                350,000.00$   
PERS- 115 Trust -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                150,000.00$   

TOTAL 2,142,800$       2,285,432$       2,308,500         2,375,000$     2,428,179$     3,081,087$     

SERVICES & SUPPLIES
Gas & Oil 100,000$          95,000$            95,000$            100,000$        90,000$          110,000$        
Repairs & Parts-Airplane 20,000$            20,000$            20,000$            25,000$          25,000$          40,500$          
Repairs & Parts  30,000$            30,000$            30,000$            35,000$          35,000$          40,000$          
Office Supplies 15,000$            15,000$            15,000$            15,000$          15,000$          20,000$          
Education & Publicity 30,000$            40,000$            45,000$            50,000$          50,000$          75,000$          
Insecticides 630,000$          610,432$          590,000$          821,500$        696,500$        896,500$        
Expendable Equipment 50,000$            50,000$            40,000$            40,000$          20,000$          40,000$          
Communications 20,000$            30,000$            40,000$            45,000$          30,000$          35,000$          
Travel 15,000$            15,000$            15,000$            15,000$          10,000$          10,000$          
Utilities 25,000$            30,000$            45,000$            45,000$          25,000$          40,000$          
Rent 5,000$               5,000$               5,000$               5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            
Special Services 80,000$            100,000$          100,000$          100,000$        100,000$        150,000$        
Trustee Allowance 13,200$            13,200$            13,200$            13,200$          13,200$          13,200$          
General Insurance 75,000$            80,000$            90,000$            85,000$          85,000$          135,000$        
Employee Trng & Dues 10,000$            15,000$            15,000$            15,000$          10,000$          15,000$          
District Fees and Permits 30,000$            30,000$            30,000$            33,000$          33,000$          40,000$          
Miscellaneous 12,000$            14,000$            14,000$            15,000$          8,500$            15,000$          
Research Supplies 45,000$            57,500$            45,000$            50,000$          40,000$          60,000$          
Alternate Technology 1,000$               1,000$               1,000$               1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Special Discretionary 10,000$            12,500$            13,000$            15,000$          8,500$            20,000$          
Gambusia 5,000$               10,000$            13,000$            13,000$          10,000$          15,000$          

TOTAL 1,221,200$     1,273,632$     1,274,200$       1,536,700$     1,310,700$     1,776,200$     
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Bldg & Improvements 50,000$          40,000$          153,000$          20,000$          45,000$          40,000$          
Vehicles 95,000$          140,000$        110,000$          105,000$        114,000$        135,000$        
Spray Equipment 25,000$          23,000$          45,000$            100,000$        36,000$          20,000$          
Aircraft 5,000$            71,000$          5,000$               10,000$          5,000$            25,000$          
Office Equipment 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$               5,000$            1,000$            2,000$            
Laboratory Equipment 1,000$            1,000$            7,000$               1,000$            1,000$            2,000$            
Shop Equipment 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$               1,000$            1,000$            2,000$            
Education & Publicity 3,000$            1,000$            1,000$               1,000$            1,000$            2,000$            
Miscellaneous 5,000$            1,000$            1,000$               1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            
Communications 1,000$            221,000$        129,650$          1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            

TOTAL 187,000$        500,000$        453,650$          245,000$        206,000$        230,000$        

          Grand Total 3,551,000$     4,059,064$     4,036,350$     4,156,700$     3,944,879$     5,087,287$     

Appropriation for Contingencies 850,025$        895,983$        631,800$        1,021,050$     945,300$        1,146,822$     
Restricted - UST Fund 5,000$               5,000$               5,000$               5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            
Committed - Accumulated Capital O 550,000$          550,000$          550,000$          800,000$        1,900,000$     1,500,000$     
Committed - Aircraft Engine Fund 350,000$          350,000$          350,000$          400,000$        500,000$        580,000$        
Assigned - Research Reserve 20,000$            20,000$            20,000$            20,000$          30,000$          100,000$        
Assigned - Vector Borne Disease E 150,000$          150,000$          150,000$          200,000$        250,000$        342,500$        
General Reserve 160,000$          160,000$          360,000$          610,000$        150,000$        200,000$        

TOTAL 2,085,025$     2,130,983$     2,066,800$     3,056,050$     3,780,300$     3,874,322$     

                Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District 
Proposed Budget

Fiscal Year 2021/2022
Fund - 2270



Final Final Final Final Final
 Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Proposed

2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022

Salaries & Benefits 5,000$     5,000$     5,500$       5,500$     5,500$     5,500$     
Services & Supplies 3,000$     3,432$     3,500$       3,500$     3,500$     3,500$     

8,000$     8,432$     9,000$       9,000$     9,000$     9,000$     

Appropriation for Contingency 2,000$     2,108$     2,250$       2,250$     2,250$     2,250$     
Assigned Vector Borne Disease 5,000$     5,000$     7,500$       7,500$     7,500$     7,500$     
General Reserve -$         -$         -$           -$         -$         -$         

Hamilton City Benefit Assessment Area
Proposed Budget

Fiscal Year 2021/2022
Fund - 2272





06/17/2019 Page 1 of 11 

CALIFORNIA EMPLOYERS’ PENSION PREFUNDING TRUST PROGRAM 

AGREEMENT AND ELECTION 
OF  

(NAME OF EMPLOYER) 

to Prefund Employer Contributions to a Defined Benefit 
Pension Plan  

WHEREAS (1) Government Code (GC) Section 21711(a) establishes in the State 
Treasury the California Employers’ Pension Prefunding Trust Fund (CEPPT), a special 
trust fund for the purpose of allowing eligible employers to prefund their required 
pension contributions to a defined benefit pension plan (each an Employer Pension 
Plan) by receiving and holding in the CEPPT amounts that are intended to be 
contributed to an Employer Pension Plan at a later date; and  

WHEREAS (2)  GC Section 21711(b) provides that the California Public Employees' 
Retirement System (CalPERS) Board of Administration (Board) has sole and exclusive 
control of the administration and investment of the CEPPT, the purposes of which 
include, but are not limited to (i) receiving contributions from participating employers; (ii) 
investing contributed amounts and income thereon, if any, in order to receive yield on 
the funds; and (iii) disbursing contributed amounts and income thereon, if any, to pay for 
costs of administration of the CEPPT and to deposit employer contributions into 
Employer Pension Plans in accordance with their terms; and 

WHEREAS (3) _____________________________________________________ 
(NAME OF EMPLOYER) 

(Employer) desires to participate in the CEPPT upon the terms and conditions set by 
the Board and as set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS (4) Employer may participate in the CEPPT upon (i) approval by the Board 
and (ii) filing a duly adopted and executed Agreement and Election to Prefund Employer 
Contributions to a Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Agreement) as provided in the terms 
and conditions of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS (5) The CEPPT is a trust fund that is intended to perform an essential 
governmental function (that is, the investment of funds by a State, political subdivision 
or 115 entity) within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code (Code) Section 115 and 
Internal Revenue Service Revenue Ruling 77-261, and as an Investment Trust Fund, as 
defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 84, 
Paragraph 16, for accounting and financial reporting of fiduciary activities from the 



06/17/2019 
Page 2 of 11 

external portion of investment pools and individual investment accounts that are held in 
a trust that meets the criteria in Paragraph 11c(1). 

WHEREAS (6) The CEPPT is not a Code Section 401(a) qualified trust and the assets 
held in the CEPPT are not assets of any Employer Pension Plan or any plan qualified 
under Code Section 401(a). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT EMPLOYER HEREBY MAKES THE 
FOLLOWING REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTY AND THAT THE BOARD AND 
EMPLOYER AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

A. Employer Representation and Warranty

Employer hereby represents and warrants that it is the State of California or a political 
subdivision thereof, or an entity whose income is excluded from gross income under 
Code Section 115(1). 

B. Adoption and Approval of the Agreement; Effective Date; Amendment

(1) Employer's governing body shall elect to participate in the CEPPT by adopting this
Agreement and filing with the Board a true and correct original or certified copy of this
Agreement as follows:

Filing by mail, send to: CalPERS 
CEPPT  
P.O. Box 1494 
Sacramento, CA 95812-1494 

Filing in person, deliver to:   CalPERS Mailroom 
CEPPT  
400 Q Street 
Sacramento, CA  95811 

(2) Upon receipt of the executed Agreement, and after approval by the Board, the
Board shall fix an effective date and shall promptly notify Employer of the effective date
of the Agreement. Employer shall provide the Board such other documents as the
Board may request, including, but not limited to a certified copy of the resolution(s) of
the governing body of Employer authorizing the adoption of the Agreement and
documentation naming Employer’s successor entity in the event that Employer ceases
to exist prior to termination of this Agreement.

(3) The terms of this Agreement may be amended only in writing upon the agreement
of both the Board and Employer, except as otherwise provided herein. Any such
amendment or modification to this Agreement shall be adopted and executed in the
same manner as required for the Agreement.  Upon receipt of the executed amendment
or modification, the Board shall fix the effective date of the amendment or modification.



06/17/2019 
Page 3 of 11 

(4) The Board shall institute such procedures and processes as it deems necessary to
administer the CEPPT, to carry out the purposes of this Agreement, and to maintain the
tax-exempt status of the CEPPT. Employer agrees to follow such procedures and
processes.

C. Employer Reports Provided for the Board’s Use in Trust Administration and
Financial Reporting and Employer Contributions

(1) Employer shall provide to the Board a defined benefit pension plan cost report on
the basis of the actuarial assumptions and methods prescribed by Actuarial Standards
of Practice (ASOP) or prescribed by GASB. Such report shall be for the Board’s use in
trust administration and financial reporting and shall be prepared at least as often as the
minimum frequency required by applicable GASB Standards. This defined benefit
pension plan cost report may be prepared as an actuarial valuation report or as a GASB
compliant financial report.  Such report shall be:

1) prepared and signed by a Fellow or Associate of the Society of
Actuaries who is also a Member of the American Academy of
Actuaries or a person with equivalent qualifications acceptable to the
Board;

2) prepared in accordance with ASOP or with GASB; and

3) provided to the Board prior to the Board's acceptance of contributions
for the reporting period or as otherwise required by the Board.

(2) In the event that the Board determines, in its sole discretion, that Employer’s cost
report is not suitable for the Board’s purposes and use or if Employer fails to provide a
required report, the Board may obtain, at Employer's expense, a report that meets the
Board’s trust administration and financial reporting needs.  At the Board’s option, the
Board may recover the costs of obtaining the report either by billing and collecting such
amount from Employer or through a deduction from Employer's Prefunding Account (as
defined in Paragraph D(2) below).

(3) Employer shall notify the Board in writing of the amount and timing of contributions
to the CEPPT, which contributions shall be made in the manner established by the
Board and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and any procedures adopted
by the Board.

(4) The Board may limit Employer’s contributions to the CEPPT to the amount
necessary to fully fund the actuarial present value of total projected benefit payments
not otherwise prefunded through the applicable Employer Pension Plan (Unfunded
PVFB), as set forth in Employer’s cost report for the applicable period. If Employer’s
contribution would cause the assets in Employer’s Prefunding Account to exceed the
Unfunded PVFB, the Board may refuse to accept the contribution.  If Employer’s cost
report for the applicable period does not set forth the Unfunded PVFB, the Board may



06/17/2019 
Page 4 of 11 

refuse to accept a contribution from Employer if the contribution would cause the assets 
in Employer’s Prefunding Account to exceed Employer’s total pension liability, as set 
forth in Employer’s cost report. 

(5) No contributions are required. Contributions can be made at any time following the
effective date of this Agreement if Employer has first complied with the requirements of
this Agreement, including Paragraph C.

(6) Employer acknowledges and agrees that assets held in the CEPPT are not assets
of any Employer Pension Plan or any plan qualified under Code Section 401(a), and will
not become assets of such a plan unless and until such time as they are distributed
from the CEPPT and deposited into an Employer Pension Plan.

D. Administration of Accounts; Investments; Allocation of Income

(1) The Board has established the CEPPT as a trust fund consisting of an aggregation
of separate single-employer accounts, with pooled administrative and investment
functions.

(2) All Employer contributions and assets attributable to Employer contributions shall be
separately accounted for in the CEPPT (Employer’s Prefunding Account). Assets in
Employer’s Prefunding Account will be held for the exclusive purpose of funding
Employer’s contributions to its Employer Pension Plan(s) and defraying the
administrative expenses of the CEPPT.

(3) The assets in Employer’s Prefunding Account may be aggregated with the assets of
other participating employers and may be co-invested by the Board in any asset classes
appropriate for a Code Section 115 trust, subject to any additional requirements set
forth in applicable law, including, but not limited to, subdivision (d) of GC Section 21711.
Employer shall select between available investment strategies in accordance with
applicable Board procedures.

(4) The Board may deduct the costs of administration of the CEPPT from the
investment income of the CEPPT or from Employer’s Prefunding Account in a manner
determined by the Board.

(5) Investment income earned shall be allocated among participating employers and
posted to Employer’s Prefunding Account daily Monday through Friday, except on
holidays, when the allocation will be posted the following business day.

(6) If, at the Board’s sole discretion and in compliance with accounting and legal
requirements applicable to an Investment Trust Fund and to a Code Section 115
compliant trust, the Board determines to its satisfaction that all obligations to pay
defined benefit pension plan benefits in accordance with the applicable Employer
Pension Plan terms have been satisfied by payment or by defeasance with no
remaining risk regarding the amounts to be paid or the value of assets held in the



 

 
06/17/2019 
 Page 5 of 11 

CEPPT, then the residual Employer assets held in Employer’s Prefunding Account may 
be returned to Employer. 
 
E.  Reports and Statements 
 
(1)  Employer shall submit with each contribution a contribution report in the form and 
containing the information prescribed by the Board. 
 
(2)  The Board, at its discretion but at least annually, shall prepare and provide a 
statement of Employer’s Prefunding Account reflecting the balance in Employer's 
Prefunding Account, contributions made during the period covered by the statement, 
investment income allocated during such period, and such other information as the 
Board may determine.   
 
F.  Disbursements 
 
(1)  Employer may receive disbursements from the CEPPT not to exceed, on an annual 
basis, the amount of the total annual Employer contributions to Employer’s Pension 
Plan for such year. 
 
(2)  Employer shall notify the Board in writing in the manner specified by the Board of 
the persons authorized to request disbursements from the CEPPT on behalf of 
Employer.   
 
(3)  Employer's request for disbursement shall be in writing signed by Employer's 
authorized representative, in accordance with procedures established by the Board, and 
the Board may rely conclusively upon such writing. The Board may, but is not required 
to, require that Employer certify or otherwise demonstrate that amounts disbursed from 
Employer’s Prefunding Account will be used solely for the purposes of the CEPPT.   
However, in no event shall the Board have any responsibility regarding the application 
of distributions from Employer’s Prefunding Account. 
 
(4)  No disbursement shall be made from the CEPPT which exceeds the balance in 
Employer’s Prefunding Account.  
  
(5)  Requests for disbursements that satisfy the above requirements will be processed 
on at least a monthly basis.   
 
(6)  The Board shall not be liable for amounts disbursed in error if it has acted upon the 
written instruction of an individual authorized by Employer to request disbursements, and 
is under no duty to make any investigation or inquiry about the correctness of such 
instruction. In the event of any other erroneous disbursement, the extent of the Board’s 
liability shall be the actual dollar amount of the disbursement, plus interest at the actual 
earnings rate but not less than zero.  
 
 
 



 

 
06/17/2019 
 Page 6 of 11 

G.  Costs of Administration 
 
Employer shall pay its share of the costs of administration of the CEPPT, as determined 
by the Board and in accordance with Paragraph D. 
 
H.  Termination of Employer’s Participation in the CEPPT 
 
(1)  The Board may terminate Employer’s participation in the CEPPT if: 
 

(a) Employer’s governing body gives written notice to the Board of its election 
to terminate; or 

 
(b) The Board determines, in its sole discretion, that Employer has failed to 

satisfy the terms and conditions of applicable law, this Agreement or the 
Board's rules, regulations or procedures. 

 
(2)  If Employer’s participation in the CEPPT terminates for either of the foregoing 
reasons, all assets in Employer’s Prefunding Account shall remain in the CEPPT, 
except as otherwise provided below, and shall continue to be invested and accrue 
income as provided in Paragraph D, and Employer shall remain subject to the terms of 
this Agreement with respect to such assets. 
 
(3)  After Employer’s participation in the CEPPT terminates, Employer may not make 
further contributions to the CEPPT. 
 
(4)  After Employer’s participation in the CEPPT terminates, disbursements from 
Employer’s Prefunding Account may continue upon Employer’s instruction or otherwise 
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.   
 
(5)  After Employer’s participation in the CEPPT terminates, the governing body of 
Employer may request either: 
 

(a) A trustee to trustee transfer of the assets in Employer’s Prefunding 
Account to a trust dedicated to prefunding Employer’s required pension 
contributions; provided that the Board shall have no obligation to make 
such transfer unless the Board determines that the transfer will satisfy 
applicable requirements of the Code, other law and accounting standards, 
and the Board’s fiduciary duties. If the Board determines that the transfer 
will satisfy these requirements, the Board shall then have one hundred fifty 
(150) days from the date of such determination to effect the transfer. The 
amount to be transferred shall be the amount in Employer's Prefunding 
Account as of the date of the transfer (the “transfer date”) and shall 
include investment earnings up to an investment earnings allocation date 
preceding the transfer date. In no event shall the investment earnings 
allocation date precede the transfer date by more than 150 days. 

 



06/17/2019 
Page 7 of 11 

(b) A disbursement of the assets in Employer’s Prefunding Account; provided
that the Board shall have no obligation to make such disbursement unless
the Board determines that, in compliance with the Code, other law and
accounting standards, and the Board’s fiduciary duties, all of Employer's
obligations for payment of defined benefit pension plan benefits and
reasonable administrative costs of the Board have been satisfied. If the
Board determines that the disbursement will satisfy these requirements,
the Board shall then have one hundred fifty (150) days from the date of
such determination to effect the disbursement. The amount to be
disbursed shall be the amount in Employer’s Prefunding Account as of the
date of the disbursement (the “disbursement date”) and shall include
investment earnings up to an investment earnings allocation date
preceding the disbursement date. In no event shall the investment
earnings allocation date precede the disbursement date by more than 150
days.

(6) After Employer’s participation in the CEPPT terminates and at such time that no
assets remain in Employer’s Prefunding Account, this Agreement shall terminate. To the
extent that assets remain in Employer’s Prefunding Account, this Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect.

(7) If, for any reason, the Board terminates the CEPPT, the assets in Employer’s
Prefunding Account shall be paid to Employer to the extent permitted by law and Code
Section 115 after retention of (i) an amount sufficient to pay the Unfunded PVFB as set
forth in a current defined benefit pension plan(s) cost report prepared in compliance with
ASOP and the requirements of Paragraph C(1), and (ii) amounts sufficient to pay
reasonable administrative costs of the Board. Amounts retained by the Board to pay the
Unfunded PVFB shall be transferred to (i) another Code Section 115 trust dedicated to
prefunding Employer’s required pension contributions, subject to the Board’s
determination that such transfer will satisfy applicable requirements of the Code, other
law and accounting standards, and the Board’s fiduciary duties or (ii) Employer’s
Pension Plan, subject to acceptance by Employer’s Pension Plan.

(8) If Employer ceases to exist but Employer’s Prefunding Account continues to exist,
and if no provision has been made to the Board’s satisfaction by Employer with respect
to Employer’s Prefunding Account, the Board shall be permitted to identify and appoint
a successor to Employer under this Agreement, provided that the Board first
determines, in its sole discretion, that there is a reasonable basis upon which to identify
and appoint such a successor and provided further that such successor agrees in
writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement. If the Board is unable to identify or
appoint a successor as provided in the preceding sentence, then the Board is
authorized to appoint a third-party administrator or other successor to act on behalf of
Employer under this Agreement and to otherwise carry out the intent of this Agreement
with respect to Employer’s Prefunding Account. Any and all costs associated with such
appointment shall be paid from the assets attributable to Employer’s Prefunding
Account. At the Board’s option, and subject to acceptance by Employer’s Pension Plan,



06/17/2019 
Page 8 of 11 

the Board may instead transfer the assets in Employer’s Prefunding Account to 
Employer’s Pension Plan and terminate this Agreement. 

(9) If the Board determines, in its sole discretion, that Employer has breached the
representation and warranty set forth in Paragraph A., the Board shall take whatever
action it deems necessary to preserve the tax-exempt status of the CEPPT.

I. Indemnification

Employer shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CalPERS, the Board, the CEPPT, 
and all of the officers, trustees, agents and employees of the foregoing from and against 
any loss, liability, claims, causes of action, suits, or expense (including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and defense costs, lien fees, judgments, fines, penalties, expert witness 
fees, appeals, and claims for damages of any nature whatsoever) not charged to the 
CEPPT and imposed as a result of, arising out of, related to or in connection with (1) the 
performance of the Board’s duties or responsibilities under this Agreement, except to 
the extent that such loss, liability, suit or expense results or arises from the Board's own 
gross negligence, willful misconduct or material breach of this Agreement, or (2) without 
limiting the scope of Paragraph F(6) of this Agreement, any acts taken or transactions 
effected in accordance with written directions from Employer or any of its authorized 
representatives or any failure of the Board to act in the absence of such written 
directions to the extent the Board is authorized to act only at the direction of Employer. 

J. General Provisions

(1) Books and Records

Employer shall keep accurate books and records connected with the performance of 
this Agreement. Such books and records shall be kept in a secure location at 
Employer's office(s) and shall be available for inspection and copying by the Board and 
its representatives.  

(2) Notice

(a) Any notice or other written communication pursuant to this Agreement will be
deemed effective immediately upon personal delivery, or if mailed, three (3) days
after the date of mailing, or if delivered by express mail or e-mail, immediately
upon the date of confirmed delivery, to the following:

For the Board: 

Filing by mail, send to: 
CalPERS 
CEPPT  
P.O. Box 1494 
Sacramento, CA 95812-1494 



06/17/2019 
Page 9 of 11 

Filing in person, deliver to:  
CalPERS Mailroom 
CEPPT  
400 Q Street 
Sacramento, CA  95811 

For Employer: 

(b) Either party to this Agreement may, from time to time by notice in writing
served upon the other, designate a different mailing address to which, or a
different person to whom, all such notices thereafter are to be addressed.

(3) Survival

All representations, warranties, and covenants contained in this Agreement, or in any 
instrument, certificate, exhibit, or other writing intended by the parties to be a part of this 
Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

(4) Waiver

No waiver of a breach, failure of any condition, or any right or remedy contained in or 
granted by the provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and 
signed by the party waiving the breach, failure, right, or remedy.  No waiver of any 
breach, failure, right, or remedy shall be deemed a waiver of any other breach, failure, 
right, or remedy, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing 
waiver unless the writing so specifies. 

(5) Necessary Acts; Further Assurances

The parties shall at their own cost and expense execute and deliver such further 
documents and instruments and shall take such other actions as may be reasonably 
required or appropriate to evidence or carry out the intent and purposes of this 
Agreement. 

(6) Incorporation of Amendments to Applicable Laws and Accounting Standards

Any references to sections of federal or state statutes or regulations or accounting 
standards shall be deemed to include a reference to any amendments thereof and any 
successor provisions thereto. 

: Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District
  5117 Larkin Road
  Oroville, CA. 95965



 

 
06/17/2019 
 Page 10 of 11 

(7) Days 
 
Wherever in this Agreement a set number of days is stated or allowed for a particular 
event to occur, the days are understood to include all calendar days, including 
weekends and holidays, unless otherwise stated. 
 
(8) No Third Party Beneficiaries 
 
Except as expressly provided herein, this Agreement is for the sole benefit of the parties 
hereto and their permitted successors and assignees, and nothing herein, expressed or 
implied, will give or be construed to give any other person any legal or equitable rights 
hereunder.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, CalPERS, the CEPPT, and all of the 
officers, trustees, agents and employees of CalPERS, the CEPPT and the Board shall 
be considered third party beneficiaries of this Agreement with respect to Paragraph I 
above. 
 
(9) Counterparts 
 
This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 
 
 
 
 
A majority vote of Employer’s Governing Body at a public meeting held on the ______ 

day of the month of __________________ in the year _________, authorized entering 

into this Agreement.  

 
Signature of the Presiding Officer:  ________________________________________ 

Printed Name of the Presiding Officer:  _____________________________________ 

Name of Governing Body: ______________________________________________ 

Name of Employer: ___________________________________________________ 
 
Date:  _______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
06/17/2019 
 Page 11 of 11 

 
BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION 
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 
 
BY_____________________________________ 
ARNITA PAIGE 
DIVISION CHIEF, PENSION CONTRACT AND PREFUNDING PROGRAMS  
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 
 
 

To be completed by CalPERS 
 
The effective date of this Agreement is:  _________________________ 
 



California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
California Employers’ Pension Prefunding Trust (CEPPT) 
400 Q Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 
www.calpers.ca.gov 

Delegation of Authority to Request Disbursements 
California Employers’ Pension Prefunding Trust 

(CEPPT) 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

(GOVERNING BODY) 

OF THE 

(NAME OF EMPLOYER) 

The 
(GOVERNING BODY) 

delegates to the incumbents 

in the positions of 
(TITLE) 

and 

(TITLE) 
 , and/or 

(TITLE) 
 authority to request on behalf of the 

Employer disbursements from the Pension Prefunding Trust and to certify as to the purpose 

for which the disbursed funds will be used. 

By 

Title 

 

Revised 07/2019 
Page 1 of 1 

Date

Witness 

http://www.calpers.ca.gov/


 

  

RESOLUTION NO.  21-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
BUTTE COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION OF APPRECITATION FOR MERITORIOUS SERVICE TO THE  

CITIZENS OF BUTTE COUNTY AND HAMILTON CITY 
 

 PHILLIP HENRY  

 
 
WHEREAS, the Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District Board of Trustees, with grateful appreciation, does hereby acknowledge, 
commend, and honor Phillip Henry, an employee of the District for over twenty-six years, for his commitment and dedication; and  
 
WHEREAS, his knowledge and technical expertise have provided valuable contributions to the technical, financial, and governmental aspects of the 
District program, and 
 
WHEREAS, he has been a strong and consistent advocate of public health protection for the residents of Butte County, Hamilton City, the State of 
California, and the nation, and 
 
WHEREAS, his service and experience have been a valuable contribution to the mosquito and vector control program of Butte County and Hamilton 
City, and 
 
WHEREAS, Phillip had freely given his time and talents to strengthen the essential operations of the District, to further the District's progress toward 
reaching and fulfilling the District's mission and has worked to ensure that the District continues its tradition of outstanding service to its residents; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Phillip exemplified resolute commitment to the protection of the residents of Butte County and Hamilton City throughout his entire 
career;  
 
WHEREAS, the Board and District employees will miss Phillip’s participation, leadership, service, and ideas. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees, the President of the Board, and District Management do hereby 
recognize these efforts by Phillip Henry, an employee of the Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District, and commend him for his 
outstanding work effort in protecting the health of the residents within the District.  The Board of Trustees of the Butte County Mosquito and Vector 
Control District also does hereby recognize, thank, and publicly declare its appreciation to Phillip Henry for his twenty-six plus years of service to the 
District and publicly commend his unselfish service to the people of Butte County and Hamilton City as an employee of this District. 
 

Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District Board of Trustees 
April 14, 2021 

 
 

               
        Dr. Albert Beck, President                      Carl Starkey     Bruce Johnson   
 

 
               
       Dr. Larry Kirk, Vice-President                      James "Bo" Sheppard, Secretary                   Phil LaRocca  
 

 

               
                   Steve Ostling                       Melissa Schuster, Asst. Secretary                                   Michael Barth  
 
 
   ________ 
      Matthew Ball, District Manager 
 

 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  21-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
BUTTE COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION OF APPRECITATION FOR MERITORIOUS SERVICE TO THE  

CITIZENS OF BUTTE COUNTY AND HAMILTON CITY 
 

 DON LASIK  

 
 
WHEREAS, the Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District Board of Trustees, with grateful appreciation, does hereby acknowledge, 
commend, and honor Don Lasik, an employee of the District for over twenty-two years, for his commitment and dedication; and  
 
WHEREAS, his knowledge and technical expertise have provided valuable contributions to the technical, financial, and governmental aspects of the 
District program, and 
 
WHEREAS, he has been a strong and consistent advocate of public health protection for the residents of Butte County, Hamilton City, the State of 
California, and the nation, and 
 
WHEREAS, his service and experience have been a valuable contribution to the mosquito and vector control program of Butte County and Hamilton 
City, and 
 
WHEREAS, Don had freely given his time and talents to strengthen the essential operations of the District, to further the District's progress toward 
reaching and fulfilling the District's mission and has worked to ensure that the District continues its tradition of outstanding service to its residents; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Don exemplified resolute commitment to the protection of the residents of Butte County and Hamilton City throughout his entire career;  
 
WHEREAS, the Board and District employees will miss Don’s participation, leadership, service, and ideas. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees, the President of the Board, and District Management do hereby 
recognize these efforts by Don Lasik, an employee of the Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District, and commend him for his outstanding 
work effort in protecting the health of the residents within the District.  The Board of Trustees of the Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control 
District also does hereby recognize, thank, and publicly declare its appreciation to Don Lasik for his twenty-two plus years of service to the District 
and publicly commend his unselfish service to the people of Butte County and Hamilton City as an employee of this District. 
 

Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District Board of Trustees 
April 14, 2021 

 
 

               
        Dr. Albert Beck, President                      Carl Starkey     Bruce Johnson   
 

 
               
       Dr. Larry Kirk, Vice-President                      James "Bo" Sheppard, Secretary                   Phil LaRocca  
 

 

               
                   Steve Ostling                       Melissa Schuster, Asst. Secretary                                   Michael Barth  
 
 
   ________ 
      Matthew Ball, District Manager 
 

 




















	1 Agenda - April 14, 2021 Board Agenda
	2 Minutes of March 10 2021
	3 Report - Manager's - April 2021 & attachments
	COPY- Report - Manager's - April 2021.pdf
	Attachments 1-3.pdf

	4 20-21 3rd Quarter Recap
	5 2021 First Qtr Report
	6 RGA Building Proposal
	7 NM&R Architects ButteCounty_Mosquito&VectorUnit_Office_Annex_Proposal_2021-02-03
	8 Northstar BCMVCD Proposal Cover Letter
	9 Northstar BCMVCD Proposal
	PROPOSED DESIGN SERVICES & UNDERSTANDING OF PROJECT SCOPE

	10 Streamline Contract for Addition to Mosquito & Vector Control
	11 21-22 Proposed Fiscal Budget, Option 1 & 2
	HC.pdf
	11 21-22 Proposed Fiscal Budget, Option 1 & 2.pdf

	12 Butte LAFCo Commission Election Ballot
	13 CalPERS CEPPT Agreement and Election Forms
	4-14-21 ceppt-prefund-agreement-election-form.pdf
	CALIFORNIA EMPLOYERS’ PENSION PREFUNDING TRUST PROGRAM AGREEMENT AND ELECTION OF
	external portion of investment pools and individual investment accounts that are held in a trust that meets the criteria in Paragraph 11c(1).
	(4)The Board shall institute such procedures and processes as it deems necessary toadminister the CEPPT, to carry out the purposes of this Agreement, and to maintain thetax-exempt status of the CEPPT. Employer agrees to follow such procedures andprocesses.
	refuse to accept a contribution from Employer if the contribution would cause the assets in Employer’s Prefunding Account to exceed Employer’s total pension liability, as set forth in Employer’s cost report.




	4-14-21 ceppt-delegation-authority-form.pdf

	14 Resolution 21-02 Phillip Henry
	15 Resolution 21-03 Don Lasik
	16 March 2021 Recap



Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		CEPPT Agreement-FINALpdf.pdf




		Report created by: 

		

		Organization: 

		




[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 1

		Passed: 29

		Failed: 0




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top


Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		CEPPT Delegation of Authority_SP.pdf




		Report created by: 

		

		Organization: 

		




[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 1

		Passed: 29

		Failed: 0




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top
	NAME OF EMPLOYER_2: Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District
	Name of Employer_3: 
	Address: 
	City, State, Zip Code: 
	Day: 14
	Month: April
	Year: 2021
	Printed Name of the Presiding Officer: Albert Beck
	Name of Governing Body: Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District
	Name of Employer_4: Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District
	GOVERNING BODY: Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District
	NAME OF EMPLOYER: Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District
	The: Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District
	in the positions of: District Manager
	andor: Office Manager
	TITLE: N/A
	By: 
	Title: President
	Witness: 
	Date: 04/14/2021


